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L[ETTER TO
SHAREHOLDERS

It gives me great pleasure to reflect back on a tremendous 2014, a year in which SODIC left behind its legacy
issues and was finally able to focus on building and growing the business. The picture at the end of 2014 couldn't
be more different than it was at the start. SODIC began the year with an aggressive expansion plan and then
systematically and deliberately set about achieving its objectives.

The tone was set early in the year with SODIC settling the legal dispute with the New Urban Communities
Authority over the Eastown land. As painful as it was to swallow, the Board and management accepted it would
not be in the company’s interest to allow the dispute to drag on and distract the company from its core activities.
This dovetailed well with the amicable settlement to the arbitration with Solidere International, freeing up an
additional 250,000 sgm of land in SODIC West.

With the settlements behind us and the prospect of improved market conditions, we were pleased to welcome
Ripplewood Holdings as a 9.3% shareholder. The acquisition of such a significant block by such a sophisticated
US investor was a testament to the confidence in the market and in SODIC's ability to capture that potential.

Simultaneously, operational performance continued steadily, but it was not until the acquisition of the 301 acre
parcel in Cairo through a government land auction that the business really began to take off. The acquisition
grew SODIC's land bank in precisely the location where demand is concentrated and premiums are paid. For
the first time in its history SODIC's land bank is more concentrated on the East side of Cairo than the West. The
Villette project developed on the 301 acre land alone adds a total of more than EGP 10 billion of inventory to
SODIC's portfolio.

In addition to alleviating the concern of our eroding land bank, the process by which the 301 acre parcel was
transformed to Villette and launched with more than EGP 1 billion of sales within six months, was one of the
achievements | was most proud of. This entailed all the departments of SODIC working in perfect harmony and in
unison to ensure all the tight deadlines were met. Over the years, we have taken in-house many of the disciplines
in the interest of speed and cost. In this case, all deadlines were met even with overseas master planners from
Houston, USA.

2014 witnessed our total contracted sales exceeding EGP 3 billion for the first time, with the average unit price
increasing by a significant 32% from EGP 1.9 to 2.5 million per unit. This adjustment helped to counter inflation in
both land and construction prices, although our astute procurement policies and standardising of many products
ensured that we continue to maintain and improve our gross and net margins.

In addition to exceeding its sales targets, the company collected cash at the rate of EGP 170 million per month,
far exceeding previous years and delinquencies or late payments dropped to an all-time low of 4%. Our total
assets grew from EGP 7.6 billion to EGP 13.7 billion during the year and receivables from EGP 3.6 billion to
EGP 4.9 billion. We finished the year with a cash balance of EGP 2.1 billion compared to year beginning of
EGP 453 million. Our debt drawdown at year end was EGP 1.1 billion closing the year net cash positive.

It is always pleasing when strong performance is recognised by the market. The evidence in this instance was
hard to ignore. Our stock price doubled and the market capitalisation grew from EGP 2 billion to almost
EGP 5 billion, far outperforming the market and our competitors.

Whilst going through this rapid phase of growth, SODIC has not lost sight of its core values of delivering on its
promises to our customers, investing in our people and giving back to our community.

On deliveries, | believe that SODIC is the only company in Egypt that consistently delivers on-time and on quality
to its customers. Our technical backbone now accounts for more than 50% of the employees of the company and
is gearing up to be able to deliver more than double the number we are currently achieving. | believe that the
confidence gained from knowing your home will be delivered on or ahead of schedule is the biggest competitive
edge for SODIC.

Our employees are our greatest asset and | believe that SODIC is finally in a position that we are able to recruit
the best available talent due to our strong reputation in the market. It has been a long term goal to make SODIC
the employer of choice and anyone that visits our office will see what a fantastic environment it is, a true magnet
for talent.

On the Corporate Social Responsibility front, we are very proud of SODIC's CSR programs in education and
rehabilitation that have impacted over 6,000 lives in 2014. We have fully supported a community school in
Istabl Antar, funded children learning centres in Talbeya and Minya, introduced an early childhood education
programme to 10 nurseries in Ezbet El Assaal and contributed to the development and rehabilitation of 40
homes there. We cannot be judged to be a successful company without a successful CSR programme.

With such rapid growth comes even more challenges. In 2015, we expect the market to be more competitive
still and we do not underestimate the operational challenges that follow such a growth spurt and those that arise
after the delivery of multiple projects in different locations. We are, however, ready and willing to embrace the
challenge. Developing, delivering and operating vibrant, lived-in, integrated and sustainable communities is
what we do and where we will channel all our efforts and energy to ensure SODIC maintains its leading position
for the long term.

Ahmed D. Badrawi
Managing Director
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2014 HIGHLIGHTS

STRATEGIC ~ OUR
REVIEW DEVELOPMENTS

BUSINESS =~ GOVERNANCE
REVIEW

KEY DEVELOPMENTS

STRENGTHENING OUR BALANCE
SHEET

A number of measures have been taken to
strengthen our balance sheet ending the year with
a cash balance of EGP 2 billion. Our EGP 1 billion
rights issue was fully subscribed for from the first
round and of the EGP 2.2 billion debt facilities
secured to existing projects, EGP 1.1 billion has
been drawn down.

RECORD CONTRACTED SALES

We have achieved a record net contracted sales of
EGP 3 billion, a 24% increment year-on-year. Our
total launched inventory was 92% sold reflecting
the strong demand for SODIC's products in the
market.

CONSTANTLY EVOLVING TO MEET
MARKET NEEDS

Bringing to the market the right products is key
to our success, we continue to focus on the upper
middle class segment through offering smaller
units; apartments and duplexes in Westown
Residences, Eastown Residences and The
Courtyards. With an average selling price below
EGP 2 million per unit these products account
for 58% of our contracted sales today. For the
first time in almost 3 years we have launched
luxury stand-alone villas in our newest project
Villette catering to a strong pent up demand for
these products. Villette accounted for 22% of our
contracted sales with an average selling price of
EGP 5 million per unit.

LAND BANK EXPANSION AND
DISPUTE RESOLUTION

We were one of the first developers to resolve

all of our land disputes in 2014. The dispute

over our Eastown land with the government was
resolved through an EGP 900 million settlement
payable over 7 years. In February, we reached a
settlement with Solidere International unlocking
some 250,000 square metres (sqm) of land in the
heart of Westown. SODIC was the first to acquire
a sizeable plot post revolution with the acquisition
of 301 acres in New Cairo through government
auction.

NEW PROJECTS, NEW LAUNCHES
During the course of the year SODIC has

brought to the market EGP 2.7 billion worth of
new inventory. New projects launched include
Villette, our 301 acre plot, which was launched in a
record 6 months from the date of award, and The
Courtyards our newest residential neighbourhood
within Westown. We continued to successfully
launch Eastown Residences and Westown
Residences with both projects fully sold out.

AWARDS

We continued to be recognised as an
award-winning developer with Euromoney
naming SODIC the best developer in the office
and business category in 2014 for The Polygon
Westown Business Park.

OPERATIONAL KPI'S

EGP 3.0 bn+24%

Gross contracted sales

Cash collected

2014 3.0
2013 2.5
2012

92%

Land acquired Sold

New acquisitions represent
41% of our unutilized land

Of total launched inventory

FINANCIAL KPI'S

491

Units Delivered

2014
2013
2012

680

Cancellations

at an all time low

Cash balance Shareholder equity

4.5 fold increment over 2013 +67% following the
successful closure of our

EGP 1bn rights issue

35%

Recognised revenue Gross Profit Margin

Up from 27% in 2013

Up 3% from previous year

0.38x

Debt to equity ratio

Diligently gearing up for
growth

Net profit

Representing a net profit
margin of 10%

SODIC
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WHAT WE DO

Building on a history of almost two decades of
successful operations in Egypt, SODIC is one of
the country’s leading real estate development
companies, bringing to the market award-winning
large scale developments to meet Egypt's

ever growing need for high quality housing,
commercial and retail spaces.

Headquartered in Cairo and listed on the
Egyptian stock exchange, SODIC is one of the few
non-family owned companies traded on the EGX,
with a strong corporate governance framework.

With a solid track record of delivering on our
commitments, SODIC has emerged as one of the

STRATEGIC
REVIEW

OUR
DEVELOPMENTS

BUSINESS
REVIEW

GOVERNANCE

country’s most credible real estate developers.
At SODIC we don't focus on bricks and mortar.
We believe in creating Human Developments - we
consider the elements that genuinely improve
people’s quality of life, and strive to create holistic
communities where people can realise their full
potential and lead productive, creative lives.

DELIVERING TO CUSTOMERS & SHAREHOLDERS

EGP

11 3.. 10.

of Built Up Areas in Cairo's Invested !
New Urban Communities *

Diverse Projects Launched

Over Some Over

6Xincrease

In market cap 2012-2014

Units Sold 1 Units Delivered !

" since inception

R
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OUR JOURNEY

’l 996 B 2 005 Despite the difficult operating environment, our
adaptation to the change in market needs and
commitment to continue timely delivery across our
B EG I N N I N G S eight projects has lead to an immediate recovery
from the downturn and has set SODIC apart from
Incorporated in 1996, SODIC was founded as a the competition. In May 2013 we launched Eastown
publicly listed company by a group of businessmen  Residences that has shown phenomenal success in
with a vision of developing a residential terms of sales and price appreciation.

neighbourhood on the western outskirts of Cairo.

As a first mover in this New Urban Community,

SODIC began its operations with a 10 million sqm 2 O 1 4
plotin Zayed making it the single largest developer

in the city. The company began developing RECO RD YEAR FO R

Beverly Hills over 1.7 million sgm of land

which now hosts over 2,900 families. SODIC & TANG I BLE
2006 - 2010 IMPROVEMENT IN

RAPID GROWTH THE OPERATING
In 2006 a new management was brought on board E NVI RO N M E NT

history that defines SODIC today. With a backdrop 2014 was a record year on many fronts and has
of a flourishing economic environment, the seen the company grow by every metric. We

management elevated the SODIC brand as a luxury ~ fémained ahead of the market being the first y
developer with the launch of Allegria, targeting the developer to settle disputes freeing up 200 acres

higher end of the market and further diversifying in Eastown as well as 250,000 sqm in the heart of
into commercial and retail segments with the launch ~ Vestown. We were the firstto expand ourland
of The Polygon and The Strip. bank acquiring a sizeable plot of 301 acres that was

master planned, branded and launched as Villette
in a record six months from acquisition.

With the strong market tailwinds and a reputation
that sets us apart from the competition SODIC
achieved a record net contracted sales of

EGP 3 billion, a 24% increment over the previous
year. We have successfully tapped into the debt and
capital markets raising a total of EGP 3.2 billion of

2011 -2013 funds fully dedicated to growth.
SUCCESSFULLY

STEERING THROUGH

THE DOWNTURN

Once more after the Egyptian revolution, SODIC
lead the market in December 2011 by launching a

new concept of largely functional homes: Westown O D ‘ C
D

Residences. /‘ O
INNUAL REPORT 2014

SODIC's land bank grew in this period, expanding
beyond west Cairo adding 1 million sgm in the fast
growing district of East Cairo. In 2009, despite the
Global Financial Crisis, SODIC continued to launch
and sell thereby moving ahead of the market.



OUR BUSINESS MODEL

STRATEGIC =~ OUR ~ BUSINESS = GOVERNANCE

REVEW  DEVELOPMENTS = REVIEW

WE CREATE

BY FOCUSING ON

Human Developments

Customers

® Taking measure of market needs and bringing to our clients
the right product

* Providing exceptional customer service

e Consistently delivering on time and promised quality standards

New standards in quality

* We raise the bar for quality standards in Egypt, from design and execution to
delivery bringing award-winning developments to the market

Property management

e Providing world-class property management through our subsidiary
EDARA, the only property management company in Egypt that has been
awarded three ISO certificates

Real talent

e Our greatest asset is our people, we are continuously hiring, training and
retaining the best in the market

* SODIC retains a team of 476 professionals with experienced in-house
capabilities

Investing responsibly

¢ Delivering shareholder value through development not land speculation,
ensuring sustainable long term returns

* Ambitious but prudent land acquisition strategy allows us to capture
the opportunities in the market while not losing sight of our dedication
to delivering on our commitments to all stakeholders including our clients,
shareholders and lenders

® Funding developments from the outset - we do not commit to our clients until
we secure the funds to deliver

WHICH ENSURES

CREATING VALUE

Enduring demand for our products

® 92% of total launched inventory value is sold
e Eastown Residences, Westown Residences and Villette are
fully sold

High land monetisation rates

® 470,000 sgm of land developed in 2014 generating
EGP 3 billion of contracted sales

e Collected EGP 2 billion in 2014 with a record
4% delinquency ratio

A prudent approach to our balance sheet and
commitments

e Adding 301 acres to our land bank in 2014 while fully
securing the funding for the development of all phases of
Villette before its launch

e Timely delivery of 491 units in 2014 with Westown Residences
Phase Il delivering ahead of schedule

e Balance sheet geared for growth with a debt to equity
ratio of 0.38x

Economically

To investors

Our shares are widely owned, from large institutions with

global footprints, local funds to small individual investors.
Over the last three years, our shares have generated total
shareholder returns of 76% Compounded Annual Growth
Rate (CAGR) for investors and we have grown our market

capitalisation five fold since 2012.

To clients

We create Human Developments - environments in which
people can develop their full potential and lead productive,
creative lives. Our commitment to our clients goes beyond
timely delivery, our world-class property management and
continuous focus on building communities delivers quality
of life, and property appreciation to our clients, making our
developments some of the most sought after in the market.

And giving back to our community

Through Employment

Every EGP 1 billion we spend on construction generates an
estimated 10,000 jobs on site. Our five year development
pipeline is creating over 20,000 jobs during construction.

And an active CSR programme

SODIC's corporte responsibility programmes impact over
6,000 families every year through education and slum
rehabilitation programmes.

SODIC
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OUR STRATEGY IN ACTION

STRATEGIC
REVIEW

OUR . BUSINESS = GOVERNANCE
DEVELOPMENTS REVIEW

A clear strategy for generating long-term
value to our stakeholders by leveraging the
solid platform and the strong brand equity
that we have built over the years.

\

EXCELLENCE IN
EXECUTION

OBJECTIVES

2014 RESULTS

2015 PLANS

® Bringing to the market an estimated EGP 21 billion worth of inventory from
existing land bank

e Delivering some 6,000 residential units on current projects during the coming
five years

e Continue timely collections maintaining a delinquency ratio below 7%

¢ Execute some EGP 7.6 billion of CAPEX on existing projects

® EGP 3 billion of net contracted sales

® 491 units delivered

® EGP 2 billion collected with a record low delinquency
ratio of 4%

® EGP 762 million CAPEX spent

e Targeting EGP 4 billion of contracted sales

e Deliver some 600 units

e Collect some EGP 2 billion of receivables

¢ EGP 1 billion planned CAPEX on existing projects

PRUDENTLY
EXPANDING
LAND BANK

e Expand land bank in East & West of Cairo through government offerings
and private land owners

e Diversify into secondary homes and coastal developments

e Penetrate into the untapped potential of secondary cities

¢ Exploring joint ventures, co-development and other asset light structures as a
means to expand operations with a less capital intensive approach

e Acquired a 301 acre plot in government auction in
East Cairo

e Settlement of Eastown dispute releasing 850,000 sgm of
land in East Cairo

® Recovered 250,000 sgm of land within the heart of
Westown through a settlement with Solidere International

e Enter into the secondary home market to complement
our product offering and leverage cross selling
opportunities

e Further expand residential land bank in East and West
Cairo

BUILD UP
RECURRING
INCOME

e Gradual build up of recurring income portfolio, targeting EGP 250 million
of recurring revenues

e Targeting 100,000 sgm of Gross Leasable Area (GLA) from our existing land
bank in East and West Cairo

e Leveraging our existing property and facility management company EDARA
and further developing its expertise

® 60% of the Westown Hub pre-leased
® Master-planning underway for Eastown commercial plot

Opening of the Westown Hub kick starting our recurring
income with 13,000 sgm of GLA's and an estimated
EGP 31 million of annual lease income at full occupancy

SODIC
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THE MARKETS WE OPERATE IN

STRATEGIC ~ OUR . BUSINESS = GOVERNANCE
REVIEW DEVELOPMENTS REVIEW

A DEEP MARKET WITH
VAST OPPORTUNITIES
ACROSS THE BOARD

RESIDENTIAL

Egypt has a population of over 90 million growing at a
rate of 2% annually and with 50% of the population below
the age of 25, the demand for housing is vast. Annual
demand for housing is currently estimated at 600,000 units
in addition to a housing gap of circa 3 million units.
Moreover, the strong performance of primary homes
demand for secondary homes in coastal cities has surged
in 2014 reflecting on the rising consumer sentiment and
improvement in the political and economic backdrop for
the country.

COMMERCIAL

With the limited supply of quality office stock in central
Cairo many companies are relocating to purpose built
office space in the new urban communities of greater
Cairo where we operate. The estimated supply of office
space in greater Cairo currently stands at 900,000 sgm of
GLA representing a mere 0.04 sgm per capita.

RETAIL

Egypt boasts a sizable retail market with retail sales of
EGP 868 billion in 2014 estimated to reach

EGP 1,400 billion by 2018. Formal retail accounts for
only around 2% of total retail trade, reflecting a highly
fragmented market with huge potential for organised
retail space. Cairo’s organised retail space is currently
estimated at 1.2 million sgm, representing 0.05 sgqm per
capita, well below regional averages.

FAVOURABLE TRENDS
FUELING OUR GROWTH

NEW URBAN COMMUNITIES

There has been a substantial shift in consumer
preference in the residential segment towards the
gated communities in new urban communities on the
outskirts of Cairo. Today these areas have evolved into

fully autonomous cities complete with services, schools,
universities and job opportunities offering their residents
a superior quality of life vis-a-vis downtown Cairo.

INFLATION HEDGE AND BEYOND

Home ownership remains a key objective for every
Egyptian household and a pillar of our economy.

This deeply rooted demand force is further driven in
inflationary periods as consumers look to real estate as a
solid store of value.

ECONOMIC & LEGISLATIVE REFORM AND
AN IMPROVED INVESTMENT CLIMATE

The year has marked a tangible improvement in our
operating environment with the Government re-opening
up land supply, in addition, access to funding has
improved dramatically, with a stronger appetite from
banks for lending and capital markets remaining liquid,
acting as a further stimulant for growth.

REAL ESTATE REMAINS
A KEY PILLAR FOR THE
EGYPTIAN ECONOMY

CONTRIBUTING TO EMPLOYMENT

The real estate sector employs 13% of the Egyptian
work force making it a strong catalyst for combating
unemployment. Every EGP 1 billion of spend creates
10,000 construction jobs.

FEEDING OVER 90 INDUSTRIES

From steel and cement to carpentry, demand in the real
estate sector drives a wealth of feeding industries across
the country.

8% CONTRIBUTION TO GDP

In this well diversified economy real estate and
construction stand as a strong pillar. The sector has
notably remained resilient during the recent downturn

and has managed to make a remarkable recovery in
2013-2014.

SODIC
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STRATEGIC | OUR ' BUSINESS | GO C
SODIC CSR REVIEW DEVELOPMENTS REVIEV%/ VERIATEE

We believe that Egypt’s future lies in the hands of its youth and that change will come with educated and empowered
young adults. We also believe we have a responsibility as an Egyptian developer to play a role in the effective human
development of Egypt's impoverished communities. Fueled by these convictions, SODIC's corporte responsibility
programmes impact over 6,000 families every year through education and slum rehabilitation programmes.

Our programmes range from building a school in Stabl Antar, supporting an early childhood education programme
that runs 22 nurseries in diverse impoverished areas in Cairo, children learning centres in Talbeya and Minya and the
development and rehabilitation of Ezbet El Assaal - Cairo’s oldest slum. Our involvement does not stop at funding
the projects; we are also very involved in the everyday happenings on the ground, ensuring our projects offer their
beneficiaries a real chance at an improved quality of life and the hope of a better future.

Our Corporate Social Responsibility programmes are always geared towards integration and eventual sustainability.
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EDUCATION, REHABILITATION & RELIEF e | iveLosvients | meviw | SOVERANCE

Future Lights Educate Me
Development
Organisation

Educating 200
Developing children and
10 nurseries in enrolling them back
Shubra in schools

Tawasol
Community School

140 children enrolled
back in school
through working
with Yasmina Abou
Youssef

Ezbet El Assaal Bedayat

4 Alleyways
renovated by
Dr. Mona Zakaria

= TFOVY  CETITTRY TR

' N | AUC Venture Lab

Taking 360 street
children off the street
through AlFanar

Graduating
9 Start-ups

Stabl Antar New ;
|
Schoo \ —

SODIC Relief

| ¥
Buying land and \ &1 :
L oy : Blood drives,
building a new school . — lothing dri
in Ezbet Khairallah > ‘ clothing rlves,
with Yasmina Abou L y blanket drives and

food distribution

Youssef T

SODIC
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SODIC ART

‘Amen’ Exhibition in Washington DC

A ;
[ Carm
Metal

en Tepsan Ahmed Keshta

Symposium Marble Bench Symposium
- .

Hesham Nawwar
™ ‘Amen’ Exhibition

|

At SODIC we perceive art as the highest expression of
freedom, one that reflects an individual articulation free
from definitions of ideology, schools of thought and artistic
categorisations. We believe that the arts play a large role
in Egyptian society, and provide a powerful platform for
communication beyond the capacity of words. Art is the
cultural expression of society, reflecting its triumphs,
defeats, hopes, fears and aspirations. The SODIC ART
initiative strives to support local talent and provide it with a
platform to be showcased inside Egypt and abroad. That's
not where it ends - we make a large effort to integrate our
developments with substantial functional art to further
enhance the experience of SODIC development residents.
From organising symposiums on our grounds, to funding
art initiatives that are showcased around the world, the
SODIC ART intiative seeks to celebrate the talent we are
blessed to have in Egypt and to use it as a tool to build
bridges and reflect the true fabric of the Egyptian people.

'The Bridge’ Exhibition in Cairo g "The Bridge’ Exhibition in London

Anas Al Alousi

Metal Symposium

'The Bridge’ Exhibition in Cairo

‘Amen’ Exhibition in Washington DC

SODIC
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OUR DEVELOPMENTS
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LAND BANK

Over the years SODIC has left its mark on the Egyptian real estate playing field. We have consistently raised
the bar for industry standards in design, construction and customer service and continue to do so with our
unwavering commitment to excellence.

We were a first mover in West Cairo and our plot SODIC West remains the single largest in the area. During
the course of our history we have contributed over 3 million sgm of built up areas to Cairo’s New Urban
Communities with over 5 million sqm of land developed.

Our land bank today provides strong visibility to the coming five years and in addition to our launched projects
we are looking to develop our remaining 3.4 million sqm of land that are almost equally divided between
East and West Cairo. Within this land bank is 562,000 sqm allocated to commercial and retail that will play an Developed UndeVelOped UndeVelOped Total Land

instrumental role in building our recurring income portfolio. East Cairo West Cairo Bank

' Excluding our land bank in Syria 2 4 S O D ‘ C

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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Beverly Hills was one of the first ever large Delivery started in 2001 with over 3,000

scale residential compounds to be developed luxurious villas, townhouses and apartments

in Sheikh Zayed City, off the Cairo-Alexandria surrounded by a spacious landscaped area and
Desert Road. Beverly Hills has developed into gardens with wide streets and vast cycling lanes.
a cosy yet vibrant community, and has become Residents enjoy social and commercial services
a sought out address in West Cairo. Beverly Hills, all in one compound, including a sports club,
SODIC's first venture, is a 1.75 million sgm two international schools, a medical centre,
mixed-use residential and commercial pharmacies, as well as other retail outlets.

development that generated over EGP 1 billion
in revenue for the company.

SODIC
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OUR DEVELOPMENTS

AN AwardW'nm"ng*";’
ResidentiakiDe

: I..‘,v_q_f... - =

Alledrio

Contribution to revenue

6%

Of launched inventory sold

(L/U) 2,4 mn Sqm recorded 2014
SODIC's flagship project, Allegria, is an In 2008, The British International School in x Of gross land
award-winning residential development Cairo (BISC) relocated from Zamalek and is D
designed by local and international architects. now open right next door to Allegria in SODIC O 1 255 35%
Allegria covers 2.4 million sgm of land, including  West. Allegria’s residential units are designed L /
beautifully landscaped green areas surrounding by several distinguished local and international o units
an 18- hole Greg Norman Signature Golf architectural firms including: Michael Graves,
Course. The development was launched in Arquitectonica, Mark Mack, Kamel Consultants 2 o Contributi
2006 and has repositioned SODIC as a leading and Research Group, Shahira Fahmy, Tamer 5 1 OO A) Ontrlduu?n t20014
contracted sales
developer in the luxury segment. The project Anani and Laithy Mekawy. The delivery of I launched
contains over 1,250 villas and townhouses in Allegria began in 2010 and is nearly completed L '
addition to a clubhouse plot covering 32,000 sgm.  today. > 7%
LLl
AV4

SODIC
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OUR DEVELOPMENTS

STRATEGIC

REVIEW
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DEVELOPMENTS
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REVIEW

GOVERNANCE
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FORTY WEST

Forty West is an exclusive development with a
Mediterranean spirit and cutting-edge design. It
is the coming together of a vibrant community
with spectacular fully-finished apartments,
offices, boutiques, world-class restaurants,
open spaces and a luxurious hotel. Designed
by internationally acclaimed Boston-based
Machado and Silvetti Architects, Forty West's
residences comprise of about 130 fully-finished
apartments, each with a unique floor plan
incorporating the latest building technologies.

Py an ¥
—- S W TSR sl

ST e

The spacious interiors are designed by
award-winning interior design house Eklego
and finished to the highest international
specifications, such as double glazed windows,
luxurious floorings, indoor fireplaces, and
spacious terraces. At the heart of Forty West

is the 2,500 sgm stunning Piazza, inspired by
Barcelona’s Plaza Real. Forty West was awarded
the Zimmer+Rohde Interior Contract Award in
2013.

T e

KEY FACTS & FIGURES

56,012 sgm
Of gross land

133

units

Contribution to revenue
recorded 2014

I 14%

100%

launched

69%

Of launched inventory sold

Contribution to
contracted sales 2014

2%

50

SODIC
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OUR DEVELOPMENTS

STRATEGIC | OUR

BUSINESS ~ GOVERNANCE
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WESTOWN

RESIDENCES

Westown Residences offers townhouses,
twin-houses, city villas, signature lofts, duplexes
and apartments. The development was launched
in 2011 and marks SODIC's first move into

this deeper segment of the market showing

our flexibility and ability to respond to market
changes.

With stunning architectural designs that
harness the beauty of their surroundings, while
reflecting the overall sense of community
suited for people with different needs, tastes
and lifestyles. This is where the vibrancy of city
life meets the calm retreat of suburban living,
bringing together themed gardens, parks,

{

and open green spaces, set in a secure, gated
community designed around the Pedestrian
Green Spine, which acts as a recreational facility
and a gateway to the rest of Westown. Westown
Residences is also just a short walk away from
Allegria, The British International School, Forty
West, The Polygon and the restaurants and cafés
of Westown Hub and The Strip.

Ten phases launched to date have been sold
out, reflecting on the strong success of this
product. Westown Residences has already
started delivery in 2013, and, upon completion,
will provide an unsurpassed living experience
amidst West Cairo’s new urban hub.
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KEY FACTS & FIGURES
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584,331 sgm
Of gross land

1,391

units

Contribution to revenue
recorded 2014

I 15%

100%

launched

100%

Of launched inventory sold

Contribution to
contracted sales 2014

I 21%
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Welcome to The Courtyards,our Newest
Residential Neighbourhood in Westown:.

COURTYARDS

WESTOWN
239,816 sgm
Of gross land Delivery Starting
Located in the heart of Westown and launched The development marks the continuation of our 20 ’I 7
in 2014, The Courtyards is SODIC's newest multiple family products in Westown building on 755
residential neighbourhood. The Courtyards’ the success of Westown Residences.

units

’l 6% Contribution to

contracted sales 2014

launched '
84% b

Of launched inventory sold

homes, designed by SODIC's very own in-house
design team are one of a kind, offering a variety
of living spaces with apartments that come with
private gardens or roof suites that all overlook
secluded courtyards.

KEY FACTS & FIGURES
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VVestown's
Susiness Park

The
Polygon

The Polygon is Westown'’s first business park and
is designed to meet the increasing demand for
purpose-built office space in Cairo. Designed
by multiple-award-winning UK-based architects
Wilkinson-Eyre, The Polygon consists of eleven
‘Class A’ office buildings. In the middle of this
bustling business park will be The Central
Building, also called the Mountain. The Polygon
offers over 90,000 sgm of state-of-the-art office
space, designed to accommodate both smaller
and larger businesses. Companies have the
flexibility of buying or renting from 67 sqm

modules to full 2,000 sgm buildings. Situated on
Km. 38 of the Cairo-Alexandria Desert Road,

a short drive away from Sheikh Zayed, 6th of
October Industrial Zone, and Abou Rawash, The
Polygon enjoys a prime location in the heart of
West Cairo. It is within walking distance from
Allegria, Forty West, BISC and Beverly Hills, and
is close to the new Rod El Farag Mehwar, which
will directly link Westown to Central Cairo.

The development has earned SODIC
recognition as the best developer in the

office/ business category by Euromoney in 2014.

KEY FACTS & FIGURES

54,727 sgm
Of gross land

11
Buildings

Contribution to revenue
recorded 2014

| 14%

80%

launched

84%

Of launched inventory sold

Contribution to
contracted sales 2014

' 9%
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» 50,090 sgm
Westown Hub was designed by leading landscaped squares and embellished with o Of gross land Opening May
Egyptian architectural firm Hassan Abu Seda, the  serene fountains and beautiful greenery, it is D)
space comprises of five multi-leveled buildings the perfect destination for a small family retreat O 46 201 5
around one central piazza offering a unique or a friendly gathering. Top brands and small L
retail entertainment experience. The project boutiques are here too, as are vibrant nightspots o units
is set to open in May 2015 and marks our first and relaxing shaded courtyards.
recurring revenue property. wn o
The project serves over 6,000 homes in L_) 1 OO A)
Home to some of Cairo’s finest restaurants SODIC West, Westown Hub is bound to be a I launched Expected leass income
and cafés. Set among pedestrian friendly, vibrant destination in West Cairo. L P
> | 579 EGP 31mn
(L (e}
AV Of launched inventory pre-leased
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The StriE

The Strip introduces a whole new shopping
concept that is the first of its kind in Egypt.
Modern, streamlined, and easily accessible
with shops arranged side by side and linked
by a walkway as well as ample parking for

700 vehicles. The strip mall concept has been
the popular answer to shopping congestion
abroad, and now The Strip brings that concept
to one of Egypt's most vibrant and fastest

I'-

growing suburbs. The Strip offers multiple
shops, banks, and eateries in a relaxed and
contemporary environment: mixed retail shops
and personal services, restaurants and cafés, a
supermarket, financial and courier services, and
automotive showrooms and services.

KEY FACTS & FIGURES

187,801 sgm
Of gross land

115

units

Contribution to revenue
recorded 2014

' 8%

56%

launched

928%

Of launched inventory sold

Contribution to
contracted sales 2014

V

2%

40
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SODIC's First

New Cairo Community

KATTAMEYA
PLAZA

L |

Five minutes away from the American University
in Cairo and Future University, Kattameya

Plaza marks a new standard in contemporary
apartment living. Kattameya Plaza is designed

and master-planned by ArchGroup the Amenities include twenty-four-hour seven-days units

distinguished firm that designed the Grosvenor  a-week Property Management and security, a

House in Dubai, and landscaped by Evergreen. convenience quarter featuring a supermarket, 1 Ooo/ Contribution to
With delivery well underway, Kattameya Plaza nursery, restaurants and cafés, a gym, laundry o contracted sales 2014
marks a new standard in contemporary services and pharmacy, three swimming launched

apartment living. It offers the perfect solution
for those seeking to combine a healthy lifestyle
with the comfort and security of a gated
residential community and the amenities of a

flourishing suburb. Designed by world-class
architects, landscape architects and interior
designers, Kattameya Plaza provides a whole
new meaning to contemporary apartment living.

pools, with one specifically for children,
secure children’s play areas, jogging paths, a
multipurpose sports field, and community areas.

KEY FACTS & FIGURES

126,000 sgm
Of gross land

488

Contribution to revenue
recorded 2014

I 14%

98%

Of launched inventory sold

1%
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ANNUAL REPORT 2014

A7



OUR DEVELOPMENTS

STRATEGIC | OUR

BUSINESS ~ GOVERNANCE

REVIEW ~ DEVELOPMENTS  REVIEW

The Lite ot
New Cairo

EASTOWN 5:03:.

Eastown is the upcoming vibrant hub of the
New Cairo district strategically located on

Road 90, adjacent to the American University

in Cairo and just a short drive from Cairo
International Airport. Built on 860,000 sgm,
Eastown residences is Eastown'’s gated
residential neighbourhood offering apartments
and duplexes among acres of green spaces. The
project was launched in 2013 and has shown

phenomenal success in terms of sales and price
appreciation, with seven launched phases fully
sold.

The strategic facade on Road 90 offers a
prime location for our future development
of commercial and office space that will
significantly contribute to our portfolio of
properties and recurring income stream.

r
1
i
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KEY FACTS & FIGURES
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860,000 sgm
Of gross land

2,486

units

Delivery Starting

2016

37%

launched

?26%

Of launched inventory sold

Contribution to
contracted sales 2014

. 29%
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Bringing Single Family
Homes to New Calro g L

’l 3% Contribution to

up of several neighbourhoods organised contracted sales 2014

launched

66% . o

Of launched inventory sold

1,264,000 sgm
Villette was launched in December 2014, a around a village centre offering approximately o Of gross land Delivery Starting
mere six months after acquiring the 301 acre 2,000 units, ranging from stand-alone villas to - 2 O 1 8
plot of land and marks the first time SODIC apartments. Villette aims to offer residents the L_D 2 1 24
brings single family units to East Cairo. The benefits of a luxurious suburban development LL r
project is strategically located in the heart of space, outdoor activities and relative tranquillity o units
New Cairo, and was master-planned by the while at the same time offering a very active and
renowned American firm SWA. Villette is made social town centre. LIL)
2
L
>
LLl
AV
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LETTER FROM
THE CFO

In FY14, our performance has created headlines as we've gone to great lengths to expand our operations, giving
our shareholders access to opportunities in the real estate market today. SODIC continued to be a first mover having
settled all major land disputes. We were also the first to acquire a sizeable land parcel adding 301 acres to our land
bank in East Cairo.

Focusing on the year’s results, our company delivered double-digit sales growth with almost all of our launched
inventory being sold. The main drivers of our performance for the year were: The continued success of our upper
middle income residential products that accounted to circa 60% of our sales; Our ability to once again adapt our
project portfolio to capture changes in the market demand with the launch of single family units in Villette accounting
for 22% of contracted sales and our persistent commitment to timely deliveries that have continued to elevate SODIC
as the trusted real estate developer in Egypt.

Our strong sales performance is reflecting very positively on our cash flows, as we are now collecting about EGP 170 million
per month, almost double our collection rate from 18 months earlier, with delinquencies at an all-time low of 4%. Our receivables
balance stood at EGP 4.9 billion at the end of 2014, versus EGP 3.6 billion at the end of 2013, reflecting the strong growth
of the business and adding certainty to our future cash flows.

We have seen continued strong commitment and support from our shareholders on the back of such a strong
performance with the 99.3% subscription of our EGP 1 billion rights issue. These funds are fully dedicated to support
our growth endeavours and are channelled to the development of Villette, our 301 acre plot, as well as additional new
land to be acquired in 2015. Our banks have also continued to show substantial backing and with EGP 2.2 billion of
facilities secured, SODIC today is fully geared for growth.

Omar Elhamawy
Chief Financial Officer
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~Y14 operational review

Contracted Sales

up 24%

SODIC achieved a record gross
contracted sales figure of EGP 3.2
billion while net contracted sales
came in at EGP 3 billion, a 24%
year-on-year increment with
over 1,200 units sold in 2014.
New launches have been the
key driver of sales in 2014 with
the strong performance of our
products in Villette, Eastown
and Westown Residences that
collectively accounted for 72%
of sales.

Net Contracted sales by

project
/‘ W WTR(1-10)21%
Courtyards 7%
EGP 3 bn METR(1-7)29%
H Villette 22%
B Other 21%

New Launches of
EGP 2.7 bn

Over the course of the year
SODIC has brought to the
market EGP 2.7 billion worth
of new inventory that was 86%
sold. This was achieved by
introducing two new projects:
Villette and Courtyards as well
as new phases of Eastown
Residences and Westown
Residences.

Cancellations at 5%
Cancellations were at an
all-time low of 5% versus 9% in
the previous year. This positive

indicator reflects the strong
demand for the company's
projects and general positive
consumer sentiment in the
market.

Cancellations as percent of gross
contracted sales

2014 5%
2013 9%
2012 11%

Collections up 58%
Our cash collections have
increased substantially with
EGP 2 billion of net cash
collected during the year, a
58% increase year-on-year.
The strong collection cycle was
driven by a higher appetite for
cash payments by our clients
and the efficient management
of our collection process.

Cash collections EGP billions

2014 2.0
2013 1.3
2012 0.8

Delinquencies at a
record low of 4%

On the back of extensive
efforts to clean-up our
receivables, mainly on Allegria
our delinquencies dropped to
a record 4% versus 7% for the
previous year.

Delivery of 491 units
Continuing to build on our
stellar reputation of timely
deliveries, we have delivered
491 units across 8 projects,
with homeowners in Westown
Residences Phase Il and
Allegria Phase V receiving their
units ahead of schedule.

2014 Deliveries by project
W WTR 15%

"\ BAllegria35%
, MW KP 14%
EGP 1.3 bn FW 14%
M Polygon 14%
) - M The Strip 8%
W CASA 2%

Increasing visibility
through significant
land bank expansions

and dispute settlement
SODIC has taken great strides
to increase our land bank
providing shareholders with
greater visibility on the future
of our developments. We
acquired a 301 acre plot that
has cemented our presence
in the fast growing district

of New Cairo. We have also
added 250,000 sgm of land
in the heart of SODIC West
through the settlement of

our dispute with Solidere
International. Furthermore

we were the first developer
to reach a settlement with

the government with the
resolution of our dispute on
the Eastown plot.

Y14 financial review

Revenue up 3%

Revenue recognised stood at
EGP 1,366 million a

3% increment over 2013.
SODIC recognises 100% of the
value of the units sold upon
delivery. With an average 3 to
3.5 year delivery time line, 2014
recognises sales recorded in
2011, in addition to some of our
remaining commitments from
2010 as well as early 2012 sales.
Salesin 2011 were weak in light
of the political backdrop at the
time.

Gross profit margin
reaching 35%

Gross profit margin came in

at 35% reverting back to our
long term average of 33-35%.
This is a recovery from the 27%
margin recorded in 2013 due
to the one off reversals related
to Solidere International and a
sub-development cancellation.

Gross profit margin

2014 35%
2013 27%
2012 36%

Net profit of
EGP 142 million

Net profit post non-controlling
interest stood at EGP 142
million versus a net loss of
EGP 447 million in 2013 and
representing a net profit
margin of 10%.

Cash balance EGP 2.1

bn, 4x previous year
Cash balance stood at

EGP 2.1 billion, more than four-
fold that of 2013, closing the
year with a highly liquid position
attributed to an extraordinarily
strong cash collection cycle in
addition to the proceeds from
the capital increase.

Cash balance EGP millions

2014 2,076
2013 453
2012 | 320

Receivables up by 35%
Receivables increased by

35% to reach EGP 4.9 billion
atthe end of 2014 reflecting
the strong sales performance.
Despite the substantial
increase in receivables our
delinquency ratio was at a
record low of 4% vs 7% in
2013.

Bank debt of EGP 1.1 bn,
gearing up for growth

Through our strong
relationships with our banks
we have managed to secure
EGP 2.2 billion of debt
facilities that were mostly
arranged during the year.
As of December 2014 our
debt balance was

EGP 1.2 billion, a 2.9x
increment over the previous
year. Our debt to equity ratio

stands at 0.38x supporting
our growth trajectory. We
remained cash positive with a
net cash balance of EGP 877
million at year end 2014.

Bank debt EGP millions

2014
2013
2012

1,199
419
399

Equity up 68%
following EGP 1bn

rights issue
Shareholders equity has
increased by 68% to reach
EGP 3 billion following the
successful closure of our
EGP 1 billion rights issue

in October that was 99.3%
subscribed. The rights

were offered to existing
shareholders at par with an
option to trade. The proceeds
of the capital increase are
entirely dedicated to the
Company'’s growth with 60%
of the proceeds allocated

to our newest development
Villette and the remaining
40% to pursue new land
opportunities.

SODIC
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Hani Sarie El Din

Chairman

Dr. Hani Sarie El Din is a prominent legal practitioner in Egypt and the Middle East with over 25 years of experience

in corporate banking, and capital market. In addition to his private professional career, Dr. Sarie El Din has served in
executive and non-executive public positions including: Chairman of Capital Market Authority, Board Member of the
Central Bank of Egypt, General Authority for Investment, and the first official US-Egyptian Fund to promote investment
in Egypt. Dr. Sarie El Din holds a Ph.D. in International Business Law from Queen Mary and Westfield College, University
of London.

Ahmed Demerdash Badrawi

Managing Director

Ahmed (Dasha) Badrawi is the Managing Director of SODIC. Badrawi joined SODIC in 2006 in a business development
role and was one of the core members of the new management team responsible for its remarkable turnaround.
Badrawi was appointed Managing Director of SODIC in March 2013. Prior to joining SODIC, Badrawi launched The
Daily Star Egypt, Egypt's first independent English-language newspaper associated with the International Herald
Tribune. In 2000, he founded Egypt's first records management business, InfoFort Egypt LLC, which he sold in 2005 to
Aramex. Prior to moving to Egypt, he was a practicing solicitor with Clifford Chance in the UK and the UAE and held

a management post with the Albert Abela Corporation in London. Badrawi graduated with a law degree from Queen
Mary & Westfield College, University of London and passed the Law Society Solicitors’ Finals from The College of Law,
Guildford.

Basil Ramzy
Board Member (Executive)

Basil Ramzy is the Chief Development Officer of SODIC, tasked with driving profitable, market-relevant, SODIC
standard developments. Since joining SODIC's development team in 2010, Ramzy has played an instrumental role in
creating and formalising SODIC's development process. Since then, he has expanded SODIC's residential product
range to include a wider variety of price-points and multi-family housing options and pushed forward SODIC's
commercial development expertise and ambitions. Before joining SODIC, Ramzy was a managing partner of Delta
Enterprises, an award-winning real estate development firm in the United States specialised in residential and retail
projects. Prior to his real estate career, Ramzy was co-founder and CEO of Sarmady Communications, one of Egypt's
premier digital media companies which was purchased by Vodafone Egypt. Ramzy holds a Master’s degree in Building
Construction and Facility Management from the Georgia Institute of Technology as well as a Bachelor's degree in
Mechanical Engineering from Carnegie Mellon University.

Omar Elhamawy
Board Member (Executive)

Omar Elhamawy is the Chief Financial Officer of SODIC as well as the Managing Director of SODIC's fully owned
company SOREAL for Real Estate Investment. Since joining SODIC in May 2013, Elhamawy has overseen the successful
completion of SODIC's EGP 1 billion capital increase, as well as, the signing of several medium term facilities. Prior

to joining SODIC, Elhamawy spent eight years as a Director within Beltone’s Investment Banking Division, where he
highly focused on the real estate sector through his close involvement in both M&A and Capital Market transactions.
His most notable transactions include advising Mena for Touristic and Real Estate Investments on a capital increase,
advising Beltone Private Equity on the tender offer and acquisition of Nasr City Housing and Development, and
advising Amer Group on its IPO, among many others. Elhamawy holds a Bachelor’s degree of Business Administration
from the American University in Cairo and is a CFA Charterholder.

Sabah Barakat

Board Member (Non-Executive)

Sabah Taysir Barakat is the Vice President of Olayan Financing Company, based in Riyadh, and is responsible for
overseeing a portfolio of wholly owned and joint venture companies in the fields of energy, construction, and real
estate development. From 2003-2008, Barakat was Vice President of Bechtel Group. From 1998-2003, Barakat was

the Regional Vice President of National Grid Plc. From 1986-1998, Sabah worked for the Costain Group Plc., a leading
international contracting firm, specialising in infrastructure, energy, and building construction. Barakat graduated in
1986 with an Engineering degree from London University as a Chartered Engineer, and a member of the UK's Institute
of Civil Engineers. Barakat holds an MBA in Engineering Management and is a member of the UK's Chartered Institute
of Management.

Safwan Thabet

Board Member (Non-Executive)

Safwan Thabet has been Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of Juhayna Food Industries
since founding the Group in 1983. Mr. Thabet has left a distinctive mark on the investment map in Egypt and played a
central role in the development of the food sector for more than 30 years through various appointments and positions,
including Member of the Board of the Federation of Egyptian Industries (FEI), Board Member of the Chamber of Food
Industries and Chairman of the Board of the Sixth of October Investors Association. Safwan Thabet holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Mechanical Engineering.

Shafik El Baghdady

Board Member (Non-Executive)

Shafik El Baghdady is a co-founder and a major shareholder of a group of investment organisations where he performs
different roles including Chairman and Managing Director of Nile Valley Group. Baghdady acts as a board member

of the General Assembly of Real Estate Investment, The Export Council for Real Estate Industry, The Food Industries
Chamber and The Egyptian Center for Economics Studies (ECES).

Shehab Elorabi

Board Member (Executive)

Shehab Elorabi is SODIC's Chief Technical officer. Elorabi joined SODIC in 2009 as Executive Director of Project
Controls. Prior to joining SODIC, Elorabi spent 5 years of his professional life in Dubai where he held the position

of Senior Development Manager at real estate developer Nakheel Co. LLC, following his post as Projects Control
Manager at Hill International Project Management Firm. His experience in Egypt prior to that included time spent
with Turner International and International Bechtel Inc. Elorabi started his career with Bechtel Corporation in the USA
as Project Controls Engineer, where he spent the first six years of his professional career. Elorabi has over 25 years of
Experience in the field of construction and real estate development in the USA, UAE and Egypt, and holds an MBA
from Golden Gate University in San Francisco, and a B.Sc. in Industrial Engineering/Operations Research from the
University of California, Berkeley.

Walid Abanamay

Board Member (Non-Executive)

Dr. Walid Sulaiman Abanamay has been the Managing Director of Al-Mareefa Al -Saudia Company since 1997. Prior
to this, he served in the Treasury and Corporate Banking Departments of SAMBA Financial Group. Dr. Abanamay

has been serving the Board of Directors of several listed companies, private equity and equity funds including,
Joussour, Beltone Financial, UGIC, Mena Capital Fund and GB Auto. He also served in the Boards of SAFCO, Nasr City,
Al-Inmaia, Al Raya Holdings and Al Masafi. Dr. Abanamay holds a B.Sc. in Computer Science from Southern lllinois
University, a Master's degree in Management Information Systems from the University of lllinois and a Ph.D. in Business
Administration majoring in Finance from Southern lllinois University.

Yezan Haddadin

Board Member (Non-Executive)

Yezan Haddadin is currently the Chief Investment Officer of the Capital Bank Group, a financial services group with
operations in Jordan, Irag and UAE. Haddadin has over 15 years of investment and investment banking experience. In
2013, he co-founded HCH Partners, a private equity investment company focused on East Africa, where he currently
serves on the Board and is a member of the investment committee. Prior to that, Haddadin acted as Advisor at
Ripplewood Holdings LLC., following his post of Managing Director at Perella Weinberg in New York from 2007 to
2012 and his work with JPMorgan’s M&A group in New York from 2000 to 2007. Haddadin received a Bachelor of
Science degree from Georgetown’s School of Foreign Service and a Juris Doctor from Northwestern University School
of Law. He was admitted to the New York bar and is a licensed pilot. Throughout his career, Haddadin has developed
extensive experience across a range of industries and advised on approximately $100 billion in M&A transactions in
North America, Latin America, Europe, the Middle East and Africa.
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Ahmed Demerdash Badrawi

Managing Director

Ahmed (Dasha) Badrawi is the Managing Director of SODIC. Badrawi joined SODIC in 2006 in a business development
role and was one of the core members of the new management team responsible for its remarkable turnaround.
Badrawi was appointed Managing Director of SODIC in March 2013. Prior to joining SODIC, Badrawi launched The
Daily Star Egypt, Egypt’s first independent English-language newspaper associated with the International Herald
Tribune. In 2000, he founded Egypt's first records management business, InfoFort Egypt LLC, which he sold in 2005 to
Aramex. Prior to moving to Egypt, he was a practicing solicitor with Clifford Chance in the UK and the UAE and held

a management post with the Albert Abela Corporation in London. Badrawi graduated with a law degree from Queen
Mary & Westfield College, University of London and passed the Law Society Solicitors’ Finals from The College of Law,
Guildford.

Ahmed Labib

Chief Commercial Officer

Ahmed Labib is the Chief Commercial Officer of SODIC. Labib is responsible for setting and achieving company-

wide commercial objectives as well as setting and overseeing the execution of SODIC's marketing strategy. In his
capacity, Labib collaborates with the development team, heavily contributing to the creation, positioning and pricing of
SODIC's products. Labib joined SODIC in 2007 as a Sales Manager whose success quickly earned him the title of Sales
Director and later Executive Sales Director. His previous experience includes working in the Marketing Department

at McDonalds and spending seven years in the Marketing and Consumer Relations Platform at British American
Tobacco (BAT) where he held various positions, the last of which was Multiple Category Brand Manager. Alongside his
professional experience Labib co-founded several successful ventures in the entertainment industry. Labib holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Psychology with a minor in Mass Communication from the American University in Cairo.

Ashraf Farid

Chief Business Development Officer

Ashraf Farid is the Chief Business Development Officer of SODIC. Farid oversees the Legal, Sales Operations,

Board Compliance and Business Development functions, playing an instrumental role in growing the company’s

land bank and business ventures. Farid also acts as SODIC's key spokesperson overseeing the Public Relations and
Corporate Social Responsibility functions in this capacity. Farid holds a Bachelor’s degree in Economics and Financial
Management from Cairo University, in addition to being Associate of the Chartered Insurance Institute in London
(ACII) - (UK) and a certified sales trainer. Farid joined SODIC in 2007 as Director of Operations after eight years of
sales operations and business development experience. In his capacity as Sales Training Manager, Farid assisted in
establishing Allianz Group's first Life Agency in Egypt. He also worked with Al-Futtaim Group as Business Development
Manager where he was responsible for one of the Group's business portfolios.

Basil Ramzy
Chief Development Officer

Basil Ramzy is the Chief Development Officer of SODIC, tasked with driving profitable, market-relevant, SODIC
standard developments. Since joining SODIC's development team in 2010, Ramzy has played an instrumental role in
creating and formalising SODIC's development process. Since then, he has expanded SODIC's residential product
range to include a wider variety of price-points and multi-family housing options and pushed forward SODIC's
commercial development expertise and ambitions. Before joining SODIC, Ramzy was a managing partner of Delta
Enterprises, an award-winning real estate development firm in the United States specialised in residential and retail
projects. Prior to his real estate career, Ramzy was co-founder and CEO of Sarmady Communications, one of Egypt's
premier digital media companies which was purchased by Vodafone Egypt. Ramzy holds a Master’s degree in Building
Construction and Facility Management from the Georgia Institute of Technology as well as a Bachelor’s degree in
Mechanical Engineering from Carnegie Mellon University.

Hatem ElHalwagy
Chief Projects Officer

Hatem ElHalwagy is the Chief Projects Officer of SODIC. EIHalwagy joined SODIC in 2006, since then he has been
entrusted with managing several core departments during different periods. He has also established and set up
several support departments aimed at aligning the company'’s direction with its mission, including the departments’
recruitment, policies, procedures and systems before handing them over to their selected Directors. His previous
experience includes holding the post of Director of Development for Orascom Tourism and Development and Cairo
Financial Centre as well as managing two telecommunication companies. EIHalwagy holds a Master’s degree in
Finance from the University of Reading, UK, and a Bachelor’s degree in Construction Engineering from The American
University in Cairo.

Hazem El Tawil
Chief Planning and Compliance Officer

Hazem El-Tawil is SODIC's Chief Planning and Compliance Officer. He is responsible for the planning, technical
monitoring and compliance of SODIC's future, current and delivered projects. In his capacity, El Tawil creates
risk-based compliance formulas and protocols for the follow-up and tracking of projects’ progress from different
aspects. El Tawil joined SODIC in 1998 as Director of Design and Technical Affairs where he oversaw the creation

and the direction of the design process for a number of SODIC's projects. Prior to joining SODIC, El Tawil worked

for the Architecture/Engineering firms of Dewberry and Davis in Raleigh, NC and Skidmore, Owings and Merrill in
Chicago, USA for a period of 5 years and later returned to Egypt to join Dar Al-Handasah. El Tawil holds a Bachelor of
Architectural Engineering degree from Cairo University as well as a Master of Architecture in Urban Design degree
from North Carolina State University, NC, USA.

Hesham Shoukry

Chief HR & Administration Officer

Hesham Shoukry is SODIC's Chief HR & Administration Officer. Prior to joining SODIC, he occupied the position of
Chief Human Resources & Administration Officer at Vimpelcom-owned Global Telecom Holding - formerly Orasom
Telecom Holding. He also held the position of Head of HR for Business Unit Asia and Africa at VimpelCom, the sixth
largest mobile network operator in the world and was a member of the Leadership team. With over 15 years of HR
and management experience, he successfully led the delivery of strategic and operational human resources services
across the Asia & Africa Business Unit. Hesham started his career by joining KPMG in 1999 and moved to the Telecom
sector in 2001 as part of Ericsson Egypt. He holds an Accounting degree from Cairo University, an MBA from the Arab
Academy of Science & Technology and a Diploma in Human Resources from the American University in Cairo.

Ismail Seoudi
Chief Government Relations Officer

Ismail Seoudi is SODIC's Chief Government Relations Officer, a position he has held since joining SODIC in May 2010.
In his capacity, Seoudi plays a vital business development role, contributing to the growth of SODIC's land bank and
identifying potential business opportunities. Prior to joining SODIC, Seoudi held the position of Chairman at North
Africa for Trading & Industry Company (NAMCO) from 1992 to 2010. Prior to that and from 1987 to 1992, Seoudi held
the position of Export Manager at Nissan & Suzuki Co. Over the years, Seoudi has served as board member of several
companies including Modern Motors Co., Suzuki Trading Co., Tegara for Commercial Centres and Al Mansouria Co.
Seoudi also serves as a member of the board for Picorp Holding and Multi Market Co. alongside his role at SODIC,
positions he has held for 14 and 12 years respectively.

Omar Elhamawy
Chief Financial Officer

Omar Elhamawy is the Chief Financial Officer of SODIC as well as the Managing Director of SODIC's fully owned
company SOREAL for Real Estate Investment. Since joining SODIC in May 2013, Elhamawy has overseen the successful
completion of SODIC's EGP 1 billion capital increase as well as the signing of several medium term facilities. Prior to
joining SODIC, Elhamawy spent eight years as a Director within Beltone's Investment Banking Division, where he highly
focused on the real estate sector through his close involvement in both M&A and Capital Market transactions. His most
notable transactions include advising Mena for Touristic and Real Estate Investments on a capital increase, advising
Beltone Private Equity on the tender offer and acquisition of Nasr City Housing and Development, and advising Amer
Group on its IPO, among many others. Elhamawy holds a Bachelor's degree of Business Administration from the
American University in Cairo and is a CFA Charterholder.

Shehab Elorabi

Chief Technical Officer

Shehab Elorabi is SODIC's Chief Technical officer. Elorabi joined SODIC in 2009 as Executive Director of Project
Controls. Prior to joining SODIC, Elorabi spent 5 years of his professional life in Dubai where he held the position

of Senior Development Manager at real estate developer Nakheel Co. LLC, following his post as Projects Control
Manager at Hill International Project Management Firm. His experience in Egypt prior to that included time spent
with Turner International and International Bechtel Inc. Elorabi started his career with Bechtel Corporation in the USA
as Project Controls Engineer, where he spent the first six years of his professional career. Elorabi has over 25 years of
Experience in the field of construction and real estate development in the USA, UAE and Egypt, and holds an MBA
from Golden Gate University in San Francisco, and a B.Sc. in Industrial Engineering/Operations Research from the
University of California, Berkeley.



GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW

STRATEGIC | OUR

BUSINESS ~ GOVERNANCE

REVIEW DEVELOPMENTS = REVIEW

SODIC is committed to sound principles of
corporate governance, high ethical conduct
and good corporate citizenship. We firmly

believe that there is a real connection between

these principles and our performance as
a company, and that shareholder value is
enhanced by our commitment to and practice

of these principles.

DISCLOSURE AND
TRANSPARENCY

As a listed company SODIC is subject to the
disclosure rules and the new listing rules set
by the Egyptian Exchange and approved by
the Egyptian Financial Supervisory Authority.
The company is in compliance with the
corporate governance, financial reporting,
and disclosure provisions of the rules. In
addition to reporting its financials on a
quarterly basis and announcing all major
news and developments of the company,
SODIC follows complete transparency
regarding all material matters concerning the
corporation, including company objectives,
financial and operational results, major share
ownership and voting rights, information
about Board members, related party
transactions, and governance structures and
policies.

SHAREHOLDER
ENGAGEMENT

The company operates an active investor
relations programme. Communication with

investors and analysts is an ongoing process
throughout the year. This includes regular
scheduled Investor Relations events,
one-to-one and group meetings with

the Executive Directors and tours of our
properties, as well as regular contact with the
Investor Relations department.

During the year our Managing Director,
CFO and our Investor Relations team held
over 110 meetings with representatives
from institutional investors. These meetings
are part of a continuing programme to
build a strong two way dialogue with our
shareholders. SODIC has participated in
seven investor conferences and roadshows
in 2014 both in Egypt and across Europe,
the US, the Middle East and Africa ensuring
strong communication to our investor base
across the globe.

The Executive Board members attend the
Annual General Meeting, which provides an
opportunity for all shareholders to question
the Directors in person.

Materials including investor presentations,
our financial results and information on the
work of the board and its committees can be
downloaded at ir.sodic.com.

THE BOARD

The board is ultimately responsible for the company’s business strategy and management. It has
authority and duties under both Egyptian company law and SODIC's articles of association.

The Board comprises of the Chairman, the Managing Director, three further Executive Directors

and five Non-Executive Directors.

The Board delegates certain responsibilities to Board Committees and Management Committees.
Defined terms of reference for Board Committees, formal documentation of powers delegated
to Executive Directors and clear reporting lines ensure that the Board receives all relevant
information about the business and that decisions are made by people at the right level with the

authority to do so.

The board convened a total of 19 times in 2014 either in person or via telephone or video

conferencing.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Audit Committee

Responsibilities include oversight of financial
and narrative reporting, internal control, risk
management systems, internal and external
audit processes.

The Committee comprises of independent
Non-Executive Directors: Dr Hani Sarie El Din
(Committee Chairman) and Mr Hossam Helal

The committee convened a total of four times
in 2014

The Compensation Committee

The Committee recommends and agrees with
the Board the framework or broad policy for
the remuneration of the executive directors
and executive management.

Determines targets for any performance
related pay schemes seeking shareholder
approval for any long term incentive
arrangements;

Determines the total remuneration package of
the Managing Director

The Committee comprises of Non-Executive
Directors: Dr Walid Abanumay, Mr Sabah
Barakat, Mr Yezzan Haddadin

SODIC

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

STRATEGIC
REVIEW

OUR - BUSINESS ~ GOVERNANCE
DEVELOPMENTS REVIEW

SHARE CAPITAL

On July 13th, 2014 SODIC's Extraordinary
General Assembly convened and approved
an EGP 1 billion capital increase through a
Rights Issue. As a result 250 million shares
were offered to existing shareholders at par
value of EGP 4.0 with an option to trade
the Rights on the Egyptian Exchange. The
offering was 99.3% subscribed for during
the first round resulting in the issuance

of 248,233,225 new shares and bringing
SODIC's total issued shares to 338,909,573
shares up from 90,676,348 shares.

The success of the Rights Issue re-affirms

our shareholders belief in our strategy of
growing our land bank and capturing the vast
opportunities offered by the Egyptian real
estate market.

CHANGES IN MAIN
SHAREHOLDERS

In May 2014, Ripplewood Advisors acquired
a 9.4% previously owned by EFG Hermes.
SODIC is pleased to welcome Ripplewood as
a key shareholder and partner. Ripplewood'’s
record in helping companies realise their
potential is recognised globally. Their
previous experience in Egypt was a high
profile success story. They are long-term
investors with a track-record of creating
value and enhancing operating and strategic
capabilities.

EFG Hermes have always played a pivotal
role with SODIC and they continue to be

a significant shareholder. Their divestment

is part of their declared strategy of selling
non-core assets and focusing on their primary
business.

SHARE
PERFORMANCE

The success of 2014 for SODIC was equally
echoed in our stock price with our shares
appreciating by 90% vs a 30% increase in the
EGX 30 index. Our outperformance of this
strong market is a clear reflection of the great
strides achieved by management during

the year to clear up all legal disputes and
significantly grow the business on track to
SODIC's true potential.

Liquidity increased significantly in 2014 with
average daily trading volumes reaching EGP
21.6 million, over four-fold the levels of 2013.

21.6

6.5 46
B =

2012 2013 2014

SHARE INFORMATION

Our shares are listed on the Egyptian
Exchange since 1998 under the ticker OCDI.
Share listing: Cairo Egypt

ISIN Code: EGS65851C015

Currency: EGP

No. of Shares Outstanding: 338,909,573
Market Capitalisation as at 31/12/2014: EGP
4.8 bn

Symbol:

EGX: OCDI.CA

Reuters: OCDI.CA

Bloomberg: OCDA.CA

Index Inclusion: EGX 30, EGX 100, MSCI IMI

SHAREHOLDERS BY
REGION

As at 31/12/2014

HEgypt M Saudi Arabia

B United Kingdom Norway

B UAE M United States
Kuwait H Other

SHAREHOLDERS BY
TYPE

As at 31/12/2014

M Institutional M Individuals

SHAREHOLDERS BREAKDOWN

46%

As at 31/12/2014

B Abanumay Family

B Olayan Saudi Investment Company

M Ripplewood Advisors L.L.C.
Rashed Al Rashed & Sons Co

BMEFG Hermes
NORGES BANK

M Juma Al Majid Investments LLC

W Abdel Monem Rashed Abdel Rahman Al Rashed
Others
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Translation from Arabic
Auditor’s Report
To the Sha rs of Sixth of October for Development and Investment Company “SODIC"

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Sixth of October for
Development and Investment Company “SODIC” S.A.E, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at December 31, 2014, and the consolidated statements of income, changes in equity and cash
flows for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statemenis

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of Company’s management.
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with the Egyptian Accounting Standards and in the light of the prevailing Egyptian laws,
management responsibility includes, designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; management responsibility also includes selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Egyptian Standards on Auditing and in the light
of the prevailing Egyptian laws. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Hazem Hassan

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Sixth of October for Development and Investment
Company “SODIC” as of December 31, 2014, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Egyptian Accounting Standards

and the Egyptian laws and regulations relating to the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements.

Report of other legal and organizing requirements:

The financial information in the board of directors’ report which is prepared according to the
requirements of law no. 159 for the year 1981 and its implementing regulation agrees with the
company’s books according to the limits of this information in books.

KPIH!G Hazem Hassan

;mﬂ*’*”“f
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@
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KPMG Wazem Hassan

minnts and Consultants

Cairo, March 5, 2015



Trauslation of financi

Sixth of October for Development and Investment Company “SODIC™

Long - term assets

Fixed assets (Net)

Projects under construction

Biological Assets

Investements in associates and joint ventures
Investments - available for sale

Investment properties (Net)

Trade, notes receivables and debtors (Met)
Total long - term assets

Current assets

Other assets (Net)

Completed units ready for sale
Constructions in process

Works in process

Trade and notes receivable (Net)
Due from customers - constructions
Debtors and other debit balances (Net)
Loans to Joint Ventures
Investments in treasury bills

Cash at banks and on hand

Total current assets

Current liabilities

Provision for completion
Provisions

Bank - overdraft

Bank - credit facilities

Loans - Short term

Advances - customers

Due to customers - constructions
Contractors, suppliers and notes payable
Creditors and other eredit balances
Total current liahilitics

Working capital / (Excess of current liabilities over current assets)

Total investments

These investments are financed as follows:

Equity

Issued & paid in capital

Legal reserve

Special reserve - share premium

Carried forward losses / retained earnings
Profit from sale of treasury shares

Shares kept for incentive & bonus plan

Set aside amount for incentive & bonus plan
Met profit /{loss) for the year

Total equity attributable to the Company
Non controlling interest

Total equity

Long-term liabilities

Loans - long term

Creditors - long term

MNotes payable

Deferred tax liabilities

Total long-term liabilities

Total equity and long - term liabilities

{(An Egyptian Joint Stock Company)
Consolidated Balance Sheet
mber 31, 2014

T
Note 31/12/2014 31/12/2013
No. LE LE
() 115 286 494 125 473 817
N 11 408 573 9559 123
4838 507 3532996
(8) z -
) 4250000 4250 000
(10) 17 952 289 17 491 994
(1) 3318 910 585 2 487 049 139
3472 646 448 2 647 357 069
(13) 4 505 289 4143163
(14) 15 486 539 31 478 756
- 973 274
(15) 6239 706 098 2 965 096 541
(16) 1 540 039 286 I 116 476 739
- 1 069 820
(17 327 225 601 342 493 795
(18) . -
(19) 28 623232 23 949 736
(20) 2076 334 737 453 132 517
10 231 920 782 4 938 814 341
@l 68 382 052 87 391 032
22) 8 425 682 9§74 847
1373 763 :
23) 158 845 076 107 118 313
(34) 78 117 009 223 397 759
(24) 6 096 915 049 4294 255 681
- 2729533
(25) 723 600 322 140 968 249
(26) 594 964 708 564 396 146
7730 623 661 5430 131 560
2 501 297 121 (491 317 219)
5 973 043 569 2156 039 850
(28) 1 355 638 292 362 705 392
(29) 181 352 693 18] 352 693
(30) 1 338 296 569 1 316 921 569
( 39 372259) 407 765 882
31) 3 692 867 3 692 867
(32) ( 8012833) ( 80007 242)
(33) 20 004 359 25323 711
142 443 522 ( 447 138 141)
2994 043 210 1770 616 731
@n 94 430 992 80 030 306
3 088 474 202 1850 647 037
(34) 961 037 423 88011726
- 165 849 864
(35) 1921 001 002 48 695 896
(12) 3 430 942 2835327
2 885 469 367 305 392 813
5 973 943 569 2 156 039 850

The accompanying notes from (1) to (53) are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements and to be read therewith,

Financial & Administration

* Auditor's report "attached”

Chief Financial Officer

ol

Hany Omar Elhamawy™

ging Director

Ahmed pﬂ:@_&w_wi

Lhairman——
::Uj!_tcf:,..r-f_‘/i

Hani Sarie El Din

Sixth of October for Development and Investment Company “SODIC”

(An Egyptian Joint Stock Company)
Consolidated Income Statement

Translation of financial statements

For The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2014

Sales of real estate and lands

Executed construction contracts revenues

Service revenues of Beverly Hills City
Service revenues of Sodic West
Revenues from golf course

Total operation revenues

Cost of sales of real estate and lands
Executed construction contracts cost
Service costs of Beverly Hills City
Service costs of Sodic West

Cost of golf course

Total operation costs -

Gross profit

Other operating revenues

Selling and marketing expenses
General and administrative expenses
Other operating expenses

Operating profit

Finance income

Finance cost

Net finance Cost

Originally issued in Arabic

Company's share in losses of the joint project

Net profit / (loss) for the year before income tax

Income tax expense

Net profit / (loss) for the year

Share of the holding Company

Non controlling interest share in profits and losses of subsidiaries

Net profit / (loss) for the year

Earnings / (losses) per share (L.E / Share)

The accompanying notes from (1) to (53) are an integral part of these consolidated

Note 2014 2013

No. LE LE
(36) 1310 305 053 1 284 485 000
. 12 864 835
25 869 264 17 652 681
21850 570 2381198
7731999 7056 378
1365 756 886 1324 440 092
€2) ( 830 060 930) (915 926 848)
) ( 17 004 749)
( 29403 501) (20 749 709)
( 17351 221) (2 231 610)
( 14175 074) (13 263 187)
(890 990 726) (969 176 103)
474 766 160 355263 989
38) 105 638 090 88 050 875
39) ( 106 810 462) ( 101 523 573)
(40) ( 181 961 398) (149 601 029)
1) ( 61170 078) (331 163 010)
230 462 312 (138 972 748)
42) 55 593 599 31 549 722
43) (85 742 078) (310 304 472)
(30 148 479) (278 754 750)
- (4 873 967)
200 313 833 (422 601 465)
(44) (45 974 313) (24 527 970)
154 339 520 (447 129 435)
142 443 522 (447 138 141)
11 895 998 8 706
154 339 520 (447 129 435)

5) 1.32 (4.93)

financial statements and to be read therewith.



Translation of financial statements
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i} ] (An Egyptian Joint Stock Company)
% i 2 g 8 |# - 8l Con:.wiidated Statement of Cash Flows
55 95 Z2 - § o % § g For The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2014
g a8 I E b4
g, 8 2 g § |8
8 = = |l g
g 5 8 g 3 ] P a Note 2014
g 2 s o= g 8 = g |2 2013
33 13 £ 2 % : g g 3 § .3 | & Cash flows from operating activities Ne. LE LE
i R oz - % 3 Net profit / (loss) for the year before income tax 200 313 "
13 833
'i 2 g = |3 B Adjustments :- PoeRasy
3 _g‘vq g g = | & =z g |8 Depreciation of fixed assets and rented units
FEL - S 1 o2 0 0 3 3 Capital gains 16 377 158
3 L ¥ g |8 DEk- il pion [ 712 095 (1 663 950)
_ mpairement loss of debtors, trad i iol -
g2 g @ ol = e g , trade receivables & loans to joint 8798 931
%g 3 2 § g a al }{C\fersa[ of impairement loss of trade and notes receivabiés i ventures R 7223157 2é3 223 056)
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Translation of financial statement.
Originally issued in Arabic

Sixth of October for Development and Investment Company “SODIC”
(An Egyptian Joint Stock Company)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the financial year ended December 31, 2014

Background and activities
Sixth of October for Development and Investment Company “SODIC” (the Company)

— An Egyptian Joint Stock Company — was incorporated in accordance with the provisions of Law No. 159 of
1981 and its Executive Regulations and considering the provisions of Law No. 95 of 1992 and its Executive
Regulations and by virtue of the decree of the Minister of Economy and International Cooperation No. 322 of
1996 issued on May 12, 1996. The Company was registered in Giza Governorate Commercial Registry under
No. 625 on May 25, 1996.

The Company’s purpose is represented in the following:

Land acquisition and the subsequent sale/lease to clients after connecting the relevant infrastructure.
Operating in the field of construction, integrated construction and supplementary works.

Planning, dividing and preparing lands for building and construction according to modern building
techniques.

Building, selling and leasing all various types of real estate.

Developing and reclaiming land in the new urban communities.

Operating in the field of tourism development and tourism related establishments including, building,
managing, selling or utilizing hotels, motels and tourist villages in accordance with applicable Egyptian
laws and regulations.

Building, managing, selling and leasing —residential, service, commercial, industrial and tourism projects.
Importing and operating as trade agents within the allowable limits of the Company’s purpose (not with
the purpose of trading)

Financial leasing in accordance with Law No. 95 of 1995.

Working in all fields of information technology and systems, hardware and software (computer software
and services).

Operating in fields of communication systems, internet, space stations and transmission except for the
field of satellites.

Investing in the various activities related to petroleum, gas and petrochemicals.

Operating in the field of coordinating and planting gardens, roads and squares and also providing security,
steward - ship, maintenance and cleaning services.

Operating in the field of ownership and management of sporting, entertainment, medical, educational
buildings and also ownership, management and operating of restaurants.

In addition, the Company may have interest or participate in any manner with companies or others that
share similar activities or which may assist it to achieve its purposes in Egypt or abroad.

Also the Company is entitled to merge into or acquire the aforementioned companies or make them
subsidiaries in accordance with the provisions of law and its executive regulations.

The Company's duration is 50 years starting from the date of registration in the Commercial Registry.

The Parent Company is listed on the Egyptian Exchange.
The consolidated financial statements of Sixth of October for Development & Investment Company “SODIC”
(the Parent Company) for the financial year ended December 31, 2014 comprise the financial statements of

5.

Sixth of October for Development and Investment Company “SODIC" “An Egyptian Joint Stock Company”
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Translation of financial statements

onsolidated financial statements For the financial Year ended December originally issued in Arabic

014 (Cont.)

the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group™) and the Group’s interest in the profit
and loss of associates.

The registered office of the Parent Company is located at Km. 38 Cairo / Alexandria Desert Road, Sheikh
Zayed City. Dr. Hany Sarie El Din is the Chairman for the Parent Company and Mr. Ahmed Demerdash
Badrawi is a Board Member and the Managing Director of the Parent Company.

Basis of preparation of the interim consolidated financial statements

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Egyptian Accounting
Standards and relevant Egyptian laws and regulations.

The financial statements have been authorized by Company’s Board of Directors as March 4, 2015

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for the following:
Financial assets and liabilities recognized at fair values through profits and losses are measured at fair value.
Held for trading investments are measured at fair value.

Available for sale investments, which have market values are measured at fair value.

Liabilities for cash settled share - based payments are measured at fair value.

Assets and liabilities for Subsidiaries under liquidation are measured at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Egyptian Pound, which is the Group’s functional
currency.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Egyptian Accounting Standards
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the most important items for which estimates and judgments are used:

- Provisions for expected claims

- Useful lives for fixed assets

- Deferred taxes

- Accruals

- Provision for completion

- Valuation of investment properties

- Impairment of fixed assets.

- Impairment of inventory

- Impairment of debtors and other debit balances
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements For the financial Year ended December 31, 2014 (Cont.)

3. Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years presented in these consolidated
financial statements, except for investments policy applied for joint ventures as it’s described in details in Note
No. (3.1.3) jointly controlled entities
Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries

- The consolidated financial statements include all subsidiaries controlled by the Parent Company and which the
management intends to continue to control. Control exists when the Group has the power to control the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Such control exists by owning more
than 50% of the investees’ voting rights. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable
are taken into account. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

- Intergroup balances and transactions, including income, expenses and dividends, are eliminated in full. Profits
and losses resulting from intergroup transactions that are recognized in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets,
are eliminated in full. Intergroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated
financial statements. EAS (24) Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of
profits and losses resulting from intergroup transactions.

- Non-controlling interests shall be presented in the consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately from the
Parent shareholder’s equity. Non-controlling interests in the profit or loss of the group are separately disclosed.

Subsidiaries are represented in the following:-
Ownership
Country of As at As at
Subsidiary name Incorporation 31/12/2014 31/12/2013
% %
1- SODIC Property Services Co. - S.A.E "under liquidation" Egypt 100 100
2- Sixth of October for Development and Real Estate Projects Company 99.99 99.99
“SOREAL” - S.A.E Egypt
3- Beverly Hills for Management of Cities and Resorts Co. - S.A.E (A) Egypt 46.75 46.75
4- SODIC Garden City for Development and Investment Co. S.A.E (B) Egypt 50 50
5- Move-In for Advanced Contracting Co. - S.A.E Egypt 85 85
6- El Yosr for Projects and Agriculture Development Co. - S.A.E Egypt 99.99 99.99
7- SODIC for Development and Real Estate Investment Co. — S.A.E Egypt 99.99 99.99
8- SODIC SIAC for Real Estate Investment Co. - S.A.E Egypt 86.67 86.67
9- SODIC for Golf and Tourist Development Co. - S.A.E Egypt 100 100
10- Fourteen for Real Estate Investment Co. - S.A.E Egypt 99.99 99.99
11- La Maison for Real Estate Investment Co. - S.A.E Egypt 99.99 99.99
12-Tegara for Trading Centers Co. S.A.E Egypt 95.24 97.50
13- Edara for Services of Cities and Resorts Co. -S.A.E Egypt 99.97 99.97
14- Soreal for Real Estate Investment Egypt 99.99 -
15- SODIC for Securitization Egypt 99.99 -
16- SODIC Syria L.L.C (C) Syria 100 100
A. The legal participation in Beverly Hills for Management of Cities and Resorts Co. amounts to 70.92%, which
includes 24.17% transitory shares currently in the name of the Company. The title of these shares will be
transferred to the ultimate shareholders (Owners of Beverly Hills Project units).
B.

originally issued in Arabic

The Company participates in the share capital of SODIC Garden City for Development and Investment Co. in
conjunction with some board members and their owned companies.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements For the financial Year ended December 31, 2014 ( Cont.)

Translation of financial statements

originally issued in Arabic

C. On June 15, 2010, SODIC Syria Co. a Syrian limited liability Co. was established for acquiring a 50% stake of

the share capital of Palmyra - SODIC for Real Estate Development L.L.C, a limited liability company registered
and operating in Syria.

D. On January 12, 2014 the extraordinary general assembly decided to liquidate the company on December 31, 2013,

in which the liquidation ends within 3 years from the date of permission in the commercial register to put the
company into liquidation.
Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not a control, over the financial and

operating policies. Such influence is presumed to exist when the group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights of the investee.

Investments in associates are recorded using the equity method. Under this method the investment in associates
is initially recognized at cost and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognize the investor’s share
of the profit or loss of the associate after the date of acquisition. Dividends received from associates reduce the
carrying amount of the investment.

Losses of an associate in excess of the Company’s interest in that associate are not recognized, unless the Company
has incurred legal or constructive obligation or made payments on behalf of the associate.

If the acquisition cost exceeds the Company’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the associate, the excess is recognized as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the
carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of the investment.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint ventures are entities in which the Group has joint control over the activities and are established by contractual
agreement requiring unanimous consent for strategic financial and operating decisions. Jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using the proportionate consolidation. The consolidated financial statements include the
Group’s share in jointly controlled entities from the date that joint control commences until the date that joint
control ceases.

Given the political conditions experienced by the Syrian Arab Republic the company's board adopted a resolution
in its meeting held on April 16, 2014 to change the accounting policy for investments in jointly controlled entities
from the proportionate consolidation method to the equity method in accordance with the allowed alternative
treatment according to EAS (27) to allow the users of the financial statements to compare the financial statements
of a number of periods of the entity and to identify the trends of its financial position and its financial performance
and its cash flows. Accordingly, the management of the company calculates and records the impact of the change
in accounting policy for these investments through the equity method from the beginning of the investment in
those entities and show comparative figures for the periods presented in these financial statements in accordance

with that policy. The investment is recognized using the equity method with the same fundamentals described in
item 3.1.2 of accounting policies.

3.2 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the consolidated balance sheet
date are translated to Egyptian Pounds at the foreign exchange rate in effect at that date. Foreign exchange
differences arising on translation are recognized in the consolidated income statement. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using exchange rate at
the date of the transaction.
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Financial statements of foreign operations
Foreign operation’s financial statements maintained in foreign currencies are translated to Egyptian pounds.
Assets and liabilities of those operations are translated at foreign exchange rates prevailing at the consolidated
balance sheet date. Revenues and expenses are translated at the average exchange rate used during the period/year.
Equity items are translated using the historical exchange rate at the date of acquisition or incorporating the foreign
operations. Foreign exchange differences arising from translation are recognized directly in a separate component
of equity in the consolidated balance sheet under “Accumulated differences from foreign currency transactions”.

Fixed assets and depreciation

a. Recognition and measurement
Fixed assets that are used in production, providing goods and services or for administrative purposes are
stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment losses resulted from
impairment in the values of fixed assets (3-16) Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the asset and necessary to have the asset ready for use in the purpose for which the asset
was acquired.
When parts of an item of fixed assets have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of fixed assets.
Assets are stated in the construction phase for production or for rent or for administrative purposes at cost
less cumulative impairment losses. Cost includes professional fees and all direct costs related to the asset.
Deprecation of these assets starts when they are completed and prepared for use as intended.
The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct labor and any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use.

b. Subsequent costs
The Company recognizes in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the cost of
replacing part, after derecognized the replaced part, of such an item when that cost is incurred if it is
probable that future economic benefits embodied with the item will flow to the Company and the cost can
be measured reliably. All other costs are recognized in the income statement as an expense as incurred.

c. Depreciation
Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
each component of the fixed assets (with the exception of Land which is not depreciated). The estimated
useful lives are as follows:

Asset Years
Buildings and construction works 5-10
Caravans 5-10
Vehicles <
Furniture and fixtures 4-10
Office and communications equipment 5
Generators, machinery and equipment 2-5
Kitchen utensils 10
Wells, pumps and networks 4
Leasehold improvements 5 years or lease term whichever is lower
Golf course assets
Constructions 20
-11-

34

35

3.6

3.7

3.8

Sixth of October for Development and Investment Company “SODIC” “An Egyptian Joint Stock Company” ranslation of financial statement.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements For the financial Year ended December 31, 2014 (Cont.) originally issued in Arabic
Irrigation networks 15
Equipment and tools 15

Intangible assets- Goodwill

Goodwill (positive and/or negative) represents amounts arising on acquisition of subsidiaries or joint
ventures. As it represents the difference between the cost of the acquisition and the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired at acquisition date.

Positive goodwill is stated at cost less impairment losses while negative goodwill will be recognized
directly in the income statement. Goodwill resulting from further acquisitions after control is obtained is
determined on the basis of the cost of the additional investment and the carrying amount of net assets at the
date of acquisition.

Goodwill is tested for impairment periodically and whenever there are events or changes in circumstances
that indicate the existence of goodwill impairment. Impairment loss of goodwill cannot be reversed
subsequently.

Operating lease

Payments made under operating lease (net of any incentives obtained from the leasor are charged to the
income statement based on accrual basis.

Projects under construction

Projects under construction are recognized initially at cost. Cost includes all expenditures directly
attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use. Projects under construction
are transferred to property, plant and equipment caption when they are completed and ready for their
intended use.

Biological assets

Biological assets under construction are measured at fair value less costs to sell, any change in costs will
be recognized in profit or loss, costs to sell includes any costs incurred to sell the biological asset.
Investment properties

This item includes lands held and not allocated for a specific purpose, and/or lands held for sale on a long
term basis. It also includes lands and buildings leased to others (by virtue of operating leases). Real estate
investments are valued at cost less the accumulated depreciation and impairment (note No. 3-16). The fair
value of these investments are disclosed at the balance sheet date unless the fair value is difficult to be
determined in a reliable manner. In this case such fact shall be disclosed.

Investments

Available for sale investments

Financial instruments held by the Company and classified as available-for-sale investment are stated at cost
and subsequently measured at fair value, unless this cannot be reliably measured. Changes in fair value are
reported as a separate component in equity. When these investments are derecognized, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognized in equity is recognized in consolidated income statement. Except the
impairment loss, Investments in unlisted securities or where the fair value of investment cannot be
determined in a reliable manner such investments are stated at cost less impairment losses (note No. 3-16).
Impairment loss is recognized directly in the consolidated income statement.

Financial instruments classified as available-for-sale investments are recognized /derecognized by the
Company on the date it commits to purchase / sell the investments.
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3.11
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3.3
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3.15

Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic

Held for trading investments
Held for trading investments are classified as current assets and are stated at fair value. Any gain or loss

resulting from the change in fair value or sale of such investment is recognized in the income statement.
Treasury bills are stated at their net cost after deducting the amortized interest and the Impairment losses
(note No. 3-16).

Units ready for sale

Units ready for sale are stated at the consolidated balance sheet date at lower of cost or net releasable value.
The cost of the units includes land, utilities, construction, construction related professional fees, labor cost
and other direct and indirect expenses. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Work in process

All costs relating to uncompleted works are recorded in work in process account until the completion of
the works. Work in process is stated in the consolidated balance sheet at cost or net realizable value
whichever is lower. Costs include directly attributable cost needed to bring the units to the selling status.
(Due from/Due to customers) Construction work

Construction work in progress represents the gross unbilled amount expected to be collected from
customers based on the contracts concluded to date.

The difference between the estimated revenue calculated based on the percentage of completion and the
amount collected from the actual billing to the customer is recognized as “due from customers” within the
current assets caption. In case that the actual collections from customers exceeds the estimated revenues
calculated based on the percentage of completion the difference is recognized as a due to customers within
the current liabilities.

Construction contracts cost

Construction contract costs include all direct costs such as material cost, supplies, equipment depreciation,
labor cost and indirect costs incurred by the company such as indirect labor and maintenance. Moreover
the cost include general and administrative expense directly attributable to suck work.

Provisions for estimated losses relating to uncompleted contracts are formed in the year in which such
losses are determined.

Trade, notes receivable and debtors

Trade and notes receivables, debtors and other debit balances, that do not carry interest are stated at their
nominal value and are reduced by impairment losses note No. (3-16). Impairment losses are formed when
there is objective evidence that the Company is not able to collect the due amounts according to the original
terms of the contracts. Impairment represents the difference between the book value and net recoverable
amount which is represented in the future cash flows that the Company expects. Long-term trade and notes
receivables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently re-measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method.

Cash and cash equivalents

As a basis for preparation of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand,
checks under collection and time deposits, that have maturity date less than three months from the purchase
date. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.
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3.16

a.

3.17

Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic

Impairment of assets

Financial assets

A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have
had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the difference
between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate. An impairment loss in respect of an available-for-sale financial asset is
calculated by reference to its current fair value.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining
financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

All impairment losses are recognized in the consolidated income statement. Any cumulative loss in respect
of an available-for-sale financial asset recognized previously in equity is transferred to the consolidated
income statement.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized. For financial assets measured at amortized cost and available-for-sale
financial assets that are debt securities, the reversal is recognized in consolidated income statement. For
available-for-sale financial assets that are equity securities, the reversal is recognized directly in equity.
Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than, investment properties, units ready
for sale and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
For goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite lives or that are not yet available for use, recoverable
amount is estimated at each reporting date.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows

that largely are independent from other assets and groups. Impairment losses are recognized in the income
statement.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses
recognized in prior years are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased
or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it’s probable that a flow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect
is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. Provisions are reviewed at the balance sheet date and amended (when necessary) to reflect the
best current estimate.
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3.19

3.20

3.21

aQ

originally issued in Arabic

Provision for completion

A provision for completion of work is formed at the estimated value of the completion of the projects’
utility works (relating to the units delivered to customers and the completed units according to the
contractual terms and conditions and the completed units for which contracts were not concluded) in their
final form as determined by the Company’s technical department. The necessary provision is reviewed at
the end of each reporting year until finalization of all the project works.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognized in the income statement as an expense when incurred using the effective
interest rate.

Borrowing costs related directly to acquire or constructing qualified assets, are capitalized until the date of
having these assets available for use, capitalization is temporarily suspended during the periods in which
construction of assets is temporarily suspended. Capitalization is permanently stopped when all essential

activities to have the asset ready for use are completed according to the alternative accounting treatment
stated in the EAS no. (14).

Interest —bearing borrowings

Interest — bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of attributable transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortized cost, any differences between cost and
redemption value are recognized in the income statement over the period of the borrowing using the
effective interest rate.

Trade, contractors and other credit balances

Trade, contractors and other credit balances are stated at cost.

Share capital
Common shares are classified in the owners' equity.

Issuance of share capital
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction
from equity net of income tax — if any.
Treasury shares
In case of repurchase of the Company’s own shares, the amounts paid for repurchase includes all the direct
costs attributable to the repurchase and such amount is classified as treasury shares deducted from the
shareholders equity.
Dividends
Dividends are recognized as a liability in the period in which they are declared.
Finance of the incentive and bonus plan
Equity shares issued for the purpose of the incentive and bonus plan of the Company’s employees and
managers are presented as shares kept for incentive and bonus plan and are included in equity, the resulting
outcome from sale of these shares is recognized in equity.

On February 1, 2015 the extra ordinary general assembly agreed to end the current bonus and incentive

plan for employees, executive managers and board of directors members and implementation of a new
incentive and bonus plan as disclosed in note No. (53).

Reserves

As per the Companies' law and the Company's articles of incorporation, 5% of the net profit of the year is
set aside to form the legal reserve.

Transfer to the legal reserve may be suspended once the reserve reaches 50% of the Company's issued
capital. However, if the reserve balance falls below 50% of the Company's issued capital then transfers to
the legal reserve become required to be resumed.
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The transferred amount can be recorded at the period in which the general assembly authorizes such
transfer.

Share — based payments transactions

Equity settled share — based payments
The difference between the grant date fair value of shares and the amount incurred by the beneficiaries is

recognized in the income statement over the period that the beneficiaries become unconditionally entitled
to those shares. The expected number of beneficiaries from the plan and the extent of their benefit are
reviewed at the consolidated financial statements date. Necessary changes are made for the expense to
reflect the best estimate and the corresponding amount is included in equity.

Cash settled share - based payments

Share Appreciation Rights are granted to some of the Company’s directors as part of their salaries and
compensation packages that entitles them to future cash payments based on the increase in the share price
of the Company over a predetermined level for a certain period of time. The amount or the value of the
purchased services and incurred liabilities is measured at the fair value of the said liability and until the
settlement of such liability, the Company re-measures the fair value of the liability at the consolidated
financial statements date and at settlement date and takes into account any changes in the recognized fair
value of the liability in the income statement.

Notes payable — Long-term

Long-term notes payable are stated at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is recognized when it
is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the entity and the amount of the revenue can be
measured reliably. No revenue is recognized if there are uncertainties regarding the recovery of that
consideration due or associated costs.

Real estate and land sales

Revenue from sale of residential units, offices, commercial shops, service and villas for which contracts
were concluded is recorded when all the ownership risks and rewards are transferred to customers and upon
the actual delivery of these villas and units whether the said villas and units have been completed or semi
— completed. Revenue from sale of lands is recorded upon the delivery of the sold land to customers and
the transfer of all the ownership rewards and risks to the buyer.

Net sales are represented in the selling value of units and lands delivered to customers after excluding the
future interests that have not been realized till the consolidated balance sheet date and after deducting the
value of sales returns (represented in the saleable value of the sales returns less unrealized interests that
have been previously excluded from the saleable value). Discounts granted to customers are recorded within
the other operating expenses.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments to the extent that is probable that they will result in revenue and can be
measured reliably. As soon as the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract
revenue and expenses is recognized according to the stage of completion of the contract.

The stage of completion is assessed by reference to surveys of work performed. When the outcome of a
construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognized only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. For construction contracts under process a provision
for expected losses, if any, is immediately recognized whenever such losses are determined
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In the case of a cost plus contract, the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably when
all the following conditions are satisfied:

It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the contract will flow to the entity.

The contract costs attributable to the contract, whether or not specifically reimbursable, can be clearly
identified and measured reliably.

Service revenues

Revenue from services is recognized when the service is rendered to the customer.

Rental income

Rental income resulting from investment properties (less any discounts) is recognized in the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the terms of the lease.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized using the accrual basis, considering the period of time and effective interest
rate.

Commission revenue

Commission revenue is recognized in the consolidated income statement according to the accrual basis of
accounting.

Dividends

Dividends income is recognized in the consolidated income statement on the date the Company’s right to
receive payments is established.

Cost of sold lands

The cost of sold lands is computed based on the value of the net area of land sold in addition to its respective
share in road areas as determined by the Company’s technical management, plus its share of the open area
cost as well as its share of infrastructure cost.

Expenses

Lease payments
Payments under leases are recognized (net after discounts) in the consolidated income statement on a

straight-line basis over the terms of the lease and according to the accrual basis.

Employees’ pension
1. Pension obligations

The Company contributes to the government social insurance system for the benefit of its personnel in
accordance with the social insurance law No. 79 of 1975 and its amendment. Under this law, the
employees and the employers contribute into the system on a fixed percentage-of-salaries basis. The
Company’s liability is confined to the amount of its contribution. Contributions are charged to the
consolidated income statement using the accrual basis.

2. Employees’ profit sharing
As per the Companies Law, employees are entitled to receive not less than 10% of the distributed
profits, after deducting a percentage to support the legal reserve, according to the rules proposed by the

Company’s board of directors and after the approval of General Assembly Meeting which should not
exceed the total employees’ annual salaries.

Employees’ share in profit is recognized as dividends of profit and shown in the statement of changes
in equity and as an obligation in the financial year at which the declaration has been authorized.
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Income tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the period / year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognized in the consolidated income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized
directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the net taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted at the
consolidated balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax assets/liabilities provided is determined using tax rates
enacted at the consolidated balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized in the future years.

Earnings / (losses) per share

Earnings (losses) per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period / year.

Determination of fair values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement
and / or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. Where applicable, further information about
the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.
Fixed assets

The fair value of fixed assets recognized as a result of a business combination is based on market values.
The fair value of fixed assets is the estimated amount for which a property could be exchanged on the date
of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper
marketing where in the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion.
Investments in equity instruments

The fair value of held for trading investments and available -for- sale investment is determined by reference
to market value declared to these shares in stock market at the consolidated financial statement date.
Trade, note receivables and other debtors

The fair value of trade, note receivables and other debtors is estimated as the present value of future cash
flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the consolidated financial statement date.

Investment properties

The fair value is based on market values, being the estimated amount for which property could be exchanged on
the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper

marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion.
Share — based payment transactions

The fair value is determined by reference to market value declared at the consolidated balance sheet date without

deducting the cost related to transactions.
Assets and liabilities of subsidiaries under liquidation

Assets and liabilities of subsidiaries under liquidation are recorded with fair values and are included in current

assets and/or current liabilities.
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Financial risk management
The Group is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

e  credit risk

e liquidity risk

e market risk
This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group management of capital. Further
quantitative disclosures are included throughout these consolidated financial statements.
The Board of Directors of the Parent Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of
the Company’s risk management framework. The Board also identifies and analyzes the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.

The Group aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand
their roles and obligations.

The audit committee and the internal control department assist the company’s Board of Directors in its supervisory
role, the internal audit department is also responsible for regular and sudden inspection of internal control and the

policies associated with the risk management and reports conclusion to the company’s Board of Directors.
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other

party to incur financial loss. This risk is mainly associated with the Company’s customers and other receivables.
Trade and other receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The

demographics of the Group’s customer base, including the default risk of the industry which has less influence on
credit risk.

Almost all of the Group’s revenues is attributable to sales transaction with a vast group of customers. Therefore,
demographically, there is no concentration of credit risk.

The Group’s management has established a credit policy under which each customer is subject to credit valuation
before the Company’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered to him. The Company
obtained advance payments and checks covers for the full sales value in advance and before the delivery of units
to customers. No previous losses were observed from transactions with customers.

Sales of units are made subject to retention of title clauses and the ownership title is transferred after collection of
the full sales value. In the event of non-payment, the unit is returned to the Company and the amounts collected
from customers are repaid at the default date after deducting a 5 % to 10 % of this value.

Investments
The Company manages the risk via conducting detailed investment studies which are reviewed by the Board of
Directors. Company’s management does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligation.

Guarantees

The group extends corporate guarantees to subsidiaries, when needed, after the approval of the Extra Ordinary
General Assembly Meeting (EGM). The following corporate guarantees were provided:

- On the 15" of January, 2013, Sixth of October for Development and Investment Company’s “SODIC” EGM
approved extending a corporate guarantee to Sixth of October for Development & Real Estate Projects Co.
“SOREAL” (99% owned by SODIC) for a loan provided by Arab Investment Bank to finance Kattameya Plaza
project. The loan was fully paid in 2014.

- On the 1* of July, 2014, SOREAL’s EGM approved extending in kind guarantees to SOREAL For Real Estate
Investment’s loan with a total value of EGP 950 million excluding interest and fees.
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- On the 1% of February, 2015, Sixth of October for Development and Investment Company’s “SODIC” EGM

approved extending a corporate guarantee to SOREAL For Real Estate Investments (99% owned by SODIC) for

a loan provided by Arab African International Bank to finance Villette project. .

Liquidity risk :

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient

liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable

losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses for an appropriate

period including the cost of servicing financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme

circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

In addition, the Group maintains the following lines of credit:

e LE 1.5 million as short-term bank facilities guaranteed by treasury bills, which are kept with the bank at an
annual interest rate of 13.03%.

e A facility amounting to L.E 150 million. The facility is fully secured by deposits amounting to L.E 150 million
with an interest rate of 1.25% above the deposit rate achieved.

e A facility amounting to L.E 150 million with an interest rate of 1% below the bank’s lending rate. The facility
is guaranteed by a promissory note of L.E 150 million in addition to a corporate guarantee extended from
SODIC.

e A medium term loan in the amount of L.E 900 million with an annual interest rate of 3% above the Central
Bank of Egypt’s lending rate.

¢ A medium term loan in the amount of L.E 300 million with an annual interest rate of 2.5% above the Central
Bank of Egypt’s lending rate.

¢ A medium term loan in the amount of L.E 950 million with an annual interest rate of 2.75% above the Central
Bank of Egypt’s lending rate.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity
prices will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposure within acceptable
parameters, while optimizing the return.

Currency risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk on sales and financial assets that are denominated in foreign currencies.
Such risk is primarily represented in US$ and Syrian lira.
In respect of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other foreign currencies, the Group ensures that its
net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary to
address short- term imbalances.
The Company’s investments in its subsidiaries are not hedged as those currency positions are considered long-
term in nature.
The Company does not enter into hedging contracts for foreign currencies.

Interest rate risk
The Company adopts a policy to limit the company’s exposure for interest risk, therefore the company’s
management evaluates the available alternatives for finance and negotiates with banks to obtain the best available
interest rates and credit conditions. Borrowing contracts are presented to the Board of Directors. The finance
position and finance cost is periodically evaluated by the Company’s management. The Company does not enter
into hedging contracts for interest rates.
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5.6  Other market price risk
Equity price risk arises from available-for-sale equity securities and management of the Group monitors the mix

of equity securities in its investment portfolio based on market indices or an objective valuation of the financial
statements related to these shares.
Material investments within the portfolio are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are
approved by the Company’ Board of Directors.
The primary goal of the Company’s investment strategy is to maximize investment returns. Management is
assisted by external advisors in this regard.
In accordance with this strategy certain investments are designated at held for trading because their performance
is actively monitored and they are managed on a fair value basis.

5.7 Capital management
The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business.
The Board of Directors of the Parent Company monitors the return on capital, which the Company defines
as net profit for the period/year divided by total equity. The Board of Directors of the Parent Company
also monitors the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders. '
There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the period / year. The
Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

.-

6200 928

Total
214 522 679
(2 856 075)
89 048 862
16 111373
(2579 197)
102 581 038
115 286 494
125473 817

217 867 532

Originally issued in Arabic

fon of.

Leasehold
improvements
13 400 255
13 400 255
7 625 954
3046242
10 672 196
2728 059
5774 301

956 891
(2332044)
3008519
23 573 559
13 602 991
3639486
(2 225 906)
2360 580
17377151
6196 408
8337202

21 940 193

Generators, machinery
and equipment

2759251
(154 520)
(2585974)
18 678 979
12 817 214
3038425
(78 406)
(2239 567)
13 537 666
5141313
5843008

18 660 222

Office equipment
and communications

662 006

Furniture

and fixtures
19 030 904
(184 611)
(422 545)
19 085 754
9799 871
2615131
(91 235)
(121013)
12 202 754
6 883 000
9231033

1538280
( 184 900)
15431 824
11198 371
1403 021
( 183 650)
12417 742
3014 082
2880073

14 078 444

Vehicles

Building and
10 083 441
284 500
10 367 941
3042 106
545 820
3587926
6780 015
7041335
_22_

constructions

Land
23 700 259
23700 259
23700 259
23700 259

93 628 961
93 628 961
30 962 355

1823 248
32785 603
60 843 358
62 666 606

Golf course

Sixth of October for Development and Investment Company “SODIC”

"An Egyptian Joint Stock Company"'
Accumulated depreciation and impairment loss as at December 31, 2014

Accumulated depreciation and impairment loss as at January 1, 2014
Net book value as at December 31, 2014

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Cont.)
For The Financial Year Ended December 31, 2014

Net book value as at December 31, 2013

This item is represented as follows:-
Accumulated depreciation of disposals

Cost as at December 31, 2014

6- Fixed assets

Cost as at January 1, 2014
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year
Reclassification
Depreciation of the year

Reclassification
- Fixed assets include fully depreciated assets with an amount of L.E 22 985 181 as at December 31, 2014,
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7.

8.

Projects under construction

This item is represented as follows:

Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
LE LE
Advance payments -fixtures and purchasing of fixed assets 4 899 502 3884 072
Buildings and constructions 6 509 071 5675051
11 408 573 9559123
Investments in associates and joint ventures
The Group has the following investments in associates and joint ventures:
Legal Ownership Carrying amount
Form percentage
31/12/2014 31/12/2013 31/12/2014 31/12/2013
% Po. LE LE
Royal Gardens for SAE 20 20 ) i
Investment Property Co. (A)
Palmyra SODIC Real Estate ~ Syrian Ltd. .
50 50 -
Development (B)
Summary of financial information of associates:-
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenues Expenses
December 31, 2014
Royal Gardens for Real 588059178 (512399635) (45659543) (211937566) 183672009
Estate Investments Co. (A)
December 31, 2013
Royal Gardens for Real 741244705 (708489 631) (32 755074) 139571794 (141 605 047)
Estate Investments Co. (A)
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenues Expenses
December 31, 2014
Palmyra SODIC Real 240 699 241 (393636 642) 152937401 - (137 666 621)
Estate Development (B)
December 31, 2013
Palmyra SODIC Real 338 126 168 (379476 638) 41350470 - (173 175 402)
Estate Development (B)

D3,

Sixth of October for Development and Investment Company “SODIC” “An Egyptian Joint Stock Company”
Notes to the consolidated financial statements For the financial Year ended December 31, 2014 (Cont.)

(A)

Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic

Royal Gardens for Investment Property Co. was established during the year 2006 in association with
Palm Hills Developments and other shareholders. The cost of investment amounted to L.E 3 million
which represents 50 % of the Parent Company’s participation in the share capital of Royal Gardens Co.
The Parent Company’s share in the unrealized gain resulting from the sale of land by the Parent Company
to its associate during 2007 amounted to L.E 32 298 112 out of which only L.E 3 million has been
eliminated to the extent of the Company’s interest in the associate when preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Nonetheless, the Company’s share in the associate’s cumulative gain amounting to
L.E 16 768 208 as at December, 31 2014 has not been charged to the consolidated income statement. On
May, 22 2014 Royal Gardens for Real Estate Investment has made cash dividends of which the Parent
Company’s share amounted to LE 5 348 651. This amount has been classified within other operating

revenue Disclosure No. (38).

(B) On June 15, 2010 SODIC Syria was established - a limited liability company — to acquire a 50% stake in
Palmyra - SODIC Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. - a limited liability company - registered and
operating in the Syrian Arab Republic. The direct investment cost amounts to LE 243 million.

(C) Due to the current political circumstances in the Syrian Arab Republic and the confiscation of assets and
documents related to Palmyra - SODIC Real Estate Development Co by the state government in 2014, the
management of SODIC addressed the Embassy of the Syrian Arab Republic in Egypt and commissioned
a law firm to handle the issue and protect the interest of SODIC’s shareholders. This situation, coupled
with the unstable political environment witnessed in Syria led SODIC’s Board of Directors to take the
view that the invested amounts in Syria are non-recoverable. As such, SODIC recognized a loss arising
from the inability to recover its investments. The recognized impairment loss of the investment and the
foreign accumulated translation differences amounted to L.E. 481 051 416 as of December 31, 2014.

90

Available for sale investments
This item is represented as follows:

Egyptian Company for Development
and Management of Smart Villages

Legal

Form Ownership Participation

S.AE

%

1.8

Paid amount
of

%e.

100

Carrying
amount as Carrying
at amount as at
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
LE LE
4 250 000 4 250 000
4 250 000 4 250 000

Exposure to market risk related to available for sale investments is considered limited since these investments
represent equity instruments that are not traded in an active market and are denominated in Egyptian Pound.
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10. Investment properties

Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic

The net carrying amount of the investment properties as at December 31, 2014 amounted to
L.E 17 952 289. The amount includes commercial / residential units leased out to others and agricultural lands.

The movement of the investment properties account and its associated depreciation during the year as follows:-

Description
Cost
As at 1/1/2014
Additions during the year
Total cost of investment properties as at 31/12/2014

Accumulated depreciation
As at 1/1/2014

Depreciation for the year
Accumulated depreciation as at 31/12/2014

Net carrying amount as at December 31, 2014

Net carrying amount as at December 31, 2013

Leased out units (a)

LE
17 842713
726 080

18 568 793

(350 719)
(265 785)

(616 504)

17 952 289

17 491 994

(a) The fair value of completed residential units leased out to others amounts to L.E 35 314 300 as at

December 31, 2014.

11. Trade, notes receivable and debtors — Long-term

This item represents the present value of long-term trade and notes receivable and debtors balance as follows:-

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
LE LE

Trade receivable 6 024 232 13015 238
Sundry debtors (11-1) 9 844 400 14 766 600
Notes receivable 3410 589 350 2 549 470 654
3 426 457 982 2577252492

Deduct: Unamortized interest 107 547 397 90 203 353
3 318 910 585 2 487 049 139

11-1. This balance represents the remaining amount from the sale value of the Group’s stakes in the share capital
of El Sheikh Zayed for Real Estate Development Co. during 2010. According to the sale agreement, this

debit balance will be collected after September 15, 2016.

- The Group’s exposure to credit, and currency risks related to trade and notes receivable is disclosed in

note no. (46).

D=
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12. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Fixed assets

Provisions

31/12/2014
Assets Liabilities
L.E L.E
- (3 498 562)
67 620 -

Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic

31/12/2013
Assets Liabilities
L.E LE
= (2 889 302)
53 975 -

Total deferred tax asset/(liability)

67620 (3 498 562)

53 975 (2 889 302)

Net deferred tax (liability)

13. Other assets

Assets — Companies under liquidation (net)
Inventories and letters of credit

14. Completed units ready for sale

Cost of completed commercial units
Cost of units purchased for resale (14-1)

. (3 430 942) - (2 835 327)
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
LE L.E
2 683 724 2 638 414
1821 565 1504 749
4505 289 4143163
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
LE LE
5348 572 4262 805
10 137 967 27215 951
15 486 539 31478 756

(14-1) This item represents the acquisition cost of 15 units in Casa project (Semi Finished) that were purchased
from Royal Gardens Co. for Real Estate Investment — an associated company for the purpose of resale to

others.
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originally issued in Arabic

15. _Work in process
This item represents the total costs related to works currently being undertaken. Details of these works are
as follows:
Note 31/12/2014 31/12/2013
Allegria project costs
Allegria project costs (15-1) 464 668 726 589 843 726
Westown project costs 799 302 539 678 467 265
Kattamya Plaza project costs (15-2) 59 931 161 203 944 223
Eastown project costs (15-3) 1 467 856 946 635 155 645
Villette project costs (15 -4 ) 2 631 710 059 =
Al Yosr for projects and agriculture development project 332 831 205 332 782 254
costs
Polygon project costs 321 732 935 370 173 803
The Strip project costs 70 737 973 74 282 793
Westown Hub project costs 79 277 574 68 913 482
Beverly Hills project costs 0 681 261 9 557 631
Tegara for trading centers projects costs 1975719 1975719
6 239 706 098 2 965 096 541

(15-1) This item includes a balance of L.E 11 285 712 (2013: L.E 16 037 713) representing the value of the

additional cost related to the repurchase of some units in Allegria project.

(15-2) In reference to the handover certificate dated November 9, 2006, the amount includes the acquisition
cost related to the undelivered units of a 30-feddan plot located in the Investors’ Zone east of the ring
road in New Cairo. The land is owned by the Group’s subsidiary Sixth of October for Development
and Real Estate Projects Company “SOREAL.” The ownership of the land has been transferred to
Sixth of October for Development and Real Estate Projects Company “SOREAL.” from Bicorp
Holding, the main shareholder at the time, which was approved by the Main Real Estate Committee

(15-3)

during its meeting number 37 dated August 13, 2006.

The amount represents the acquisition cost of a plot of land under development owned by Sixth of
October for Development and Real Estate Projects Company “SOREAL” with an area of 204.277
feddans that is equivalent to 857 963.40 square meters, as stated in the handover certificate dated
November 7, 2006 located in the Future Extension of New Cairo. The ownership of the land was
transferred to Sixth of October for Development and Real Estate Projects Company “SOREAL” by
virtue of the assignment given by Bicorp Holding Company, the main shareholder at the time. The
transfer was approved by the decree issued by the Main Real Estate Committee during its meeting

No. 37 dated August 13, 2006.

Eastown project includes an amount of LE 680 million representing the present value of the
remaining installments of the settlement agreement signed between Sixth of October for
Development and Real Estate Projects Co. “SOREAL” and the Ministry of Housing and New Urban
Communities Authority dated April 14, 2014 on the plot (2) mentioned above. The settlement
agreement stipulates that SOREAL will pay L.E 900 million over 7 years in return for an extension in
the development time frame by an additional 5 years.

“F7=
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(15-9)

Translation of financi ment.

originally issued in Arabic

On February 16, 2010, a subsidiary of the Group concluded a sub-development agreement with El
Sheikh Zayed for Real Estate Development Co. for the development of Block No. (8) Of Eastown
project with an area of 7439 square meter. The agreement stipulates that:-

The subsidiary undertakes to sell the project to El Sheikh Zaid for Real Estate Development upon
fulfillment of the conditions listed in this agreement.

El Sheikh Zaid for Real Estate Development Co. is authorized to develop the project as an independent
sub-developer and not as an agent in accordance with the master plan of the project.

The subsidiary warrants that El Sheikh Zaid for Real Estate Development Co. is entitled as an
independent sub-developer and not as an agent to develop and invest in the project in accordance with
the conditions listed in this agreement. In addition, the subsidiary shall undertake all necessary procedures
to allow and facilitate the development of the project by El Sheikh Zaid for Real Estate Development Co.
in accordance with this agreement.

The subsidiary undertakes to finalize all necessary procedures to allow the transfer of ownership of the
project to El Sheikh Zaid for Real Estate Development Co. upon the fulfillment of the conditions of the
agreement.

The sub-development price amounts to L.E 3 371 400 which was collected in full during year 2010 in
accordance with the conditions of the agreement. This amount will be recorded as revenue upon the
fulfillment of the conditions of the sub-development agreement.

the amount includes L.E 2.5 billion related to the purchase of 301.48 feddans in New Cairo by a
subsidiary, SOREAL For Real Estate Investment. The award letter was received on the 9™ of June,
2014.

-28-
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16. Trade and notes receivable - current

Trade receivable
Notes receivable

Deduct : unamortized interest — notes receivable

Impairment losses of trade and notes receivable

Company “SODIC" “An Egyptian Joint Stock Company”

Notes to the consolidated financial statements For the financial Year ended December 31, 2014 (Cont.)

Translation
originally issued in Arabic

nancial nent;

31/12/2014 31/12/2013

LE LE

119 860 964 95124 018

1432 439 992 1 029 445 908

1 552 300 956 1124 569 926

12 003 148 71771 881

1 540 297 808 1116 798 045

(258 522) (321 306)

1 540 039 286 1116476 739

- The Group’s exposure to credit, currency risks related to trade and notes receivable is disclosed in note no. (46).

17. Debtors and other debit balances

Contractors and suppliers — advance payments
Due from related parties — Joint Venture
Interests receivable

Due from related parties

Prepaid expenses

Deposits with others

Tax Authority

L/ G ’s margins

Due from the bonus and incentives plan to employees and managers fund (17-A)

Advance- operating lease
Other debit balances

Impairment loss on debtors and other debit balances

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
LE LE

121 262 060 201 399 509
35191 620 35191 620
68 618 927 65 792 885
6283 377 5207 658
155 967 298 115103 464
5694 821 2 696 583
2 079 268 1 600 996
3 150 000 3 150 000
18 004 359 5323710
3615 681 36150682
14 821 959 8313 075
484 689 370 447395 182
107 463 769 (104 901 387)
327 225 601 342 493 795

(17-A) This item represents the amount due from the bonus and incentives plan to employees and managers. The
amount represents the value of dividends of the shares of the bonus and incentives plan for the financial
year ended December 31, 2010 as per the resolution of the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting held on
April 12, 2011, and the interest due for these dividends and issue rights sales value relating to bonus and

incentives plan shares of employees and executive managers as its disclosed at note No. (33).
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18. Loans to Joint Ventures

nslati nan

jal statemer

originally issued in Arabic

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
LE L.E
This item represents the loan granted to the Joint Venture project by 135 485 960 135 485 960
the Group on August 16, 2010 for a total amount of USD 19.5
million. The loan carries an interest rate of 8.5% per annum. The
principal together with interest were scheduled for payment before
June 30, 2011. The loan was renewed until December 31, 2014 with
an interest rate of 12.5% per annum.
This item represents the utilized amount of the bridge loan granted to 54 139 883 53214908
the Joint Venture project on October 28, 2010 for a total amount of
USD 7 659 025. The loan carries an interest rate of 8.5% per annum.
The principal together with interest are scheduled for payment before
December 31, 2014.
189 625 843 188 700 868
Impairment for loans to joint ventures (189 625 843) (188 700 868)
19. Investments in treasury bills
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
L.E L.E
Treasury bills with a maturity of (328) days to (358) 31 229 098 25 925 000
days
Unearned return on treasury bills (2 605 866) (1 975 264)
28 623 232 23 949 736
- The Group’s exposure to market risk related to the trading investments is disclosed in note No. (46).
20. Cash at banks and on hand
31/12/2014 31/12/2013
LE LE
Bank - time deposits (20-1) 1936 272 391 290 391 381
Bank - current accounts 113235177 135037 318
Checks under collection 25 567 899 26 526 281
Cash on hand 1259 270 1177 537
2076 334737 453 132 517

(20-1) Deposits include an amount of L.E 300 million restricted as a guarantee for the credit facility granted to the
Parent Company from a commercial bank. In addition, it includes an amount of L.E 82.7 million
representing the value of deposits collected from customers on account of the regular maintenance

EXpenses.
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- For the purpose of preparing the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents item
is represented as follows:

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
LE LE
Cash at banks and on hand 2076 334 737 453 132 517
Less:
Bank-Overdraft 1373763 =
Restricted-Time Deposits 300 000 000 50 000 000
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated 1 774 960 974 403 132 517

statement of cash flows

- The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk for financial assets is disclosed in note No. (46).

21. Provision for completion
Movement on provisions during the year is represented as follows:-

Balance Balance
as at Formed during Used during as at
1/1/2014 the year the year 31/12/2014

Provision for

completion 87 391 032 38 370 674 (57 379 654) 68 382 052
of works (21-1)

87 391 032 38 370 674 (57 379 654) 68 382 052

(21-1) This provision is formed against the estimated costs expected to be incurred to complete the execution
of the delivered units.

22. Provisions

Balance Formed ) Adjustments Balance
as at during Used during as at
1/1/2014 the year the year 31/12/2014
. "
1:11’;‘1’:;‘0“ forexpected g ¢74 847 171 305 (1 401 735) (218 735) 8 425 682
9874847 171 305 (1 401 735) (218 735) 8 425 682

- The provision is formed in relation to existing claims on the company’s transactions with other parties. The
Company’s management reviews the provisions annually and makes any amendments if needed according
to the latest agreements and negotiations with those parties.

- The Company did not disclose all of the information required by the Egyptian accounting standards
with those parties as the management assumes that the disclosure of such information shall seriously
affect the company's negotiations with those parties
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23. Bank - credit facilities
This item is represented in the following:

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
LE LE

Represents the amounts drawn down from the LE 150 million fully secured overdraft 101 170 177 12 697 761
facility signed between Bank Audi and SODIC. The facility is fully secured by deposits
amounting to L.E 150 million with an interest rate of 1.25% above the deposit rate
achieved.
Represents the balance of Bank Audi’s facility to finance Forty West project. The facility - 18 714 006
had a total value of LE 50 million with an interest rate of 2.75% above the CBE’s lending
rate. The facility was fully paid in 2014.
Represents the balance of the credit facility granted to one of the subsidiaries from the - 1201 595
Arab African International Bank with an amount of L.E 1.5 million and bears interest
rate of 13.02% per annum. This facility is guaranteed by treasury bills.

Represents the balance of the facility granted to SOREAL from Arab - 74 504 951

Investment Bank to finance Kattameya Plaza project with a total value of EGP
120 million. The facility was fully paid in 2014.

Represents the amounts drawn down from the LE 150 million fully secured overdraft

facility signed with Bank Audi and SOREAL. The facility is fully secured by deposits >0 346 130 .

amounting to L.E 150 million with an interest rate of 1.25% above the deposit rate
achieved.

1328 769 .
Represents the balance of the credit facility granted to one of the subsidiaries from the
National Bank of Egypt with an amount of L.E 5 million and bears interest rate of
12.5% per annum. This facility is guaranteed by treasury bills.
158 845 076 107 118 313

24, Advances from customers

This item represents the advance payments and contracting for units and land as follows:

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
LE LE
Advances _ SODIC West 3208 260 688 3136 725 444
Advances _ SODIC East 2 888 654 361 1 157 530 237
6 096 915 049 4 294 255 681

B0
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements For the financial Year ended December 31, 2014 (Cont.)

25. Contractors, suppliers and notes payable

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
LE LE
Contractors 80 287 724 91 349 887
Suppliers 8 964 648 20311016
Notes payable (25-1) 787 222 239 31517 868
876 474 611 143 178 771
Deduct: Unamortized interest-notes payable (152 874 289) (2210 522)
723 600 322 140 968 249

(25-1) This amount includes LE 78 714 814 which represents the amount due to the New Urban

Communities Authority.

- The Group’s exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to suppliers, contractors and notes payable is

disclosed in note no. (46).
26. Creditors and other credit balances

Sixth of October for Development and Investment Company “SODIC” “An Egyptian Joint Stock Company”
Notes to the consolidated financial statements For the financial Year ended December 31, 2014 (Cont.)

Translation of financial statements
originally issued in Arabic

(26-1) This amount represents sub-development from Sheikh Zayed for Real Estate Development.

(26-2) During 2014 the amount due to Solidere International based on the settlement agreement signed between the
Company and Solidere International has been paid through a mixture of internally generated funds and a medium
term loan from Commercial International Bank (CIB) as detailed in note No. (34)

(26-3) The amount represents the capital gain resulted from the sale of the land and the buildings of the
administrative building, which is deferred and amortized over the lifetime of the financial lease contract
as it is shown in details in note No. (34-1)

- The Group’s exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to creditors is disclosed in note no. (46).

27. Non-controlling interest

Non-controlling interest balance as at December 31, 2014 represents the interest shares in subsidiary’s
equity as follows:

Non-controlling interest

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
LE L.E

Amounts collected on account for management, operation
and maintenance of projects 296 618 767 184 311 489
Due to related parties 6 798 273 5 899 856
Accrued expenses 84 804 737 135 893 139
Customers - Beverly Hills — capital contributions 10 123 706 549 806
Customers — credit balances 18 138 400 24 584610
Tax Authority 57 626 936 40 730679
Dividends payable 91 643 91 643
Accrued compensated absence 3714 681 3199165
Deposits collected from customers — Against modifications 344615 169 600
Social insurance 438 805 991 089
Customers —down payments for sub-development (26-1) 3 371 400 3371400
Unearned revenue 1196 355 980 846
Retentions 8 958 796 14 339 725
Due to Bonyan for development and trading Co. 107 529 955
Due to SIAC 3 634 857 8 668 210
Due to Solidere International(26-2) - 71 078 513
Due to beneficiaries from Incentive plan 1 192 600 -
Deposits from others 13 082 859 9 159 039
Deferred capital gain (26-3) 6 665 857 8798 931
Premiums of Eastown club 56 404 368 28 450 554
Sundry creditors 21 756 946 22 597 897

594 964 708 564 396 146

&3

Non- Non-controlling Non- Non-
controlling share in equity controlling controlling
Non- share in profit  excluding profit interest interest
controlling /(loss) / (loss) as at as at
interest for the year for the year 31/12/2014 31/12/2013
% LE LE LE LE
Sixth of October for Development and 3965 52313
Real Estate Projects Co. “SOREAL” 0.01 56278 52313
Beverly Hills for Management of Cities
P NP 41.41 38784 28 457 680 28 496 464 28 457 680
SODIC Garden City for Development
o T — 50 12 413 707 36 603 563 49 017 270 36 603 563
Move-In for Advanced Contracting Co. 15 2504 688 (2 504 688) - (2504 688)
El Yosr for Projects and Agriculture
Development Co. 0.001 47 27 044 26 997 27044
SODIC for Development and Real Estate
Investment Co. 0.001 ) 20 20 20
SO ST oAl e 13.33 (628 133) 14790004 14161871 14790004
Development Co.
Tegara for Trading Centers Co. 4.76 67 638 2604 119 2671757 2604119
gj)ara for Services of Cities and Resorts 0.003 84 247 331 247
Fourteen for Real Estate Investment Co. 0.004 = 2 2 2
E; Maison for Real Estate Investment 0.004 _ 5 2 2
14 400 686 80 030 306 94 430 992 80030 306
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28. Share capital

e The authorized capital of the Company is L.E. 2 800 000 000.

e At the beginning of 2014, the Company had an issued and paid in capital of L.E 362 705 392 distributed over
90 676 348 shares with a par value of LE 4 per share.

e On July 13, 2014 the Extra-Ordinary General Assembly Meeting approved increasing the issued capital from
LE 362 705 392 distributed over 90 676 348 shares with a par value of LE 4 per share to LE 1 362 705 392
distributed over 340 678 348 shares with a par value of LE 4 per share. As such the additional increase in
capital is equivalent to L.E. 1 billion distributed over 250 million shares. The capital increase was allocated
to existing shareholders according to their original ownership pre the capital increase. Existing shareholders
had the right to trade the subscription right according to the Extra Ordinary General Assembly Meeting and
subsequent Egyptian Financial Supervisory Authority approval.

e The subscription period began on October 1, 2014 and ended on October 30, 2014. The capital increase was
99.2% subscribed and as such the additional issued shares amounted to 248 233 225 shares. The increase was
notarized in the commercial register as of December 7, 2014.

e As of December 31, 2014 the Company had an issued and paid in capital of L.E 1 355 638 292 distributed
over 338 909 573 shares with a par value of L.E 4 per share.

Shareholder Number of Share value Ownership
shares percentage
L.E /]
Olayan Saudi Investment Company. 43121432 © 172 485 728 12.72
RA Six Holdings Limited 31 992 544 127 970 176 9.44
Rashed Al Rashed & Sons Co 15586 983 62 347 932 4.60
EFG Hermes Holdings Financial Group. 15183111 60 732 444 4.48
NORGES Bank 13 888 392 55 553 568 4.10
Juma Al- Majid Investments LLC. 11 148 092 44 592 368 3.29
Abdel Monem Rashed Abdel Rahman Al 9897 756 39 591 024 2.92
Rashed
Incentive and bonus plan of employees and 737 500 2950 000 0.22
managers
Other shareholders 197 353 763 789 415 052 58.23
338909 573 1 355 638 292 100
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_Translation of financial statements

29. Legal Reserve
According to the Parent Company’s statutes, the Company is required to set aside 5% of annual net profit

to form a legal reserve. This transfer to legal reserve ceases once the reserve reaches 50% of the issued

30.

share capital. The reserve balance as at December 31, 2014 is represented as follows:-

Legal reserve balance as at 1/1/2003

Add:

Increase of the legal reserve with the difference between the par value of the treasury
shares and its actual cost (according to the Company’s Extra-Ordinary General
Assembly Meeting held on July 10, 2003).

Increase of the legal reserve with part of capital increase share premium with limits

of half of the Company’s issued share capital during 2006. (note No. 30).
Increase of the legal reserve with part of capital increase share premium during year

2007 with limits of half of the Company’s issued share capital. (Note no. 30).

Increase of the legal reserve by 5% of the net profit for year 2008.

Increase of the legal reserve with part of the capital increase share premium with
limits of half of the Company’s issued share capital during year 2010 (Note No. 30)
Deduct:

The amount used to increase the issued share capital during the year 2011 (Note
No.28).

Special reserve — share premium

originally issued in Arabic

L.E

'».
—

6 530 455

4627 374

123 409 151

5 000 000

2339350
39 446 365

2

181 352 693

The balance is represented in the remaining amount of capital increase share premium for a number of
11 million shares during 2006 and share premium increase of one million share for the incentive and
bonus plan during 2007 share premium increase of 7 857 143 shares during 2010 after deducting the
amounts credited to the legal reserve, and also after deducting the issuance expenses of such increase in
addition to the amount credited to the share capital according to the Extra Ordinary General Assembly

Meeting decision as follows:-

Description LE
Total value of the capital increase share premium collected during 2006, 2010 1455017 340
Add:
Share premium of the employees’ incentive and bonus plan issued during year 2007 90 000 000
lThe v'alue of selling 712 500_ share whiqh has been sold through beneficiaries of 21 375 000
incentive and bonus plan during 2014 with LE 30 per share (after split)
Deduct:
Amounts transferred to the legal reserve (167 855 516)
Capital increase — related expenses (55 240 255)
Amount used for share capital increase during 2008 (5 000 000)
1 338 296 569
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31. Profit from sales of treasury shares

32,

On August 14, 2011, the Board of Directors of the Parent Company approved the purchase of one million
treasury shares at L.E 18 per share (the par value is LE 4 per share) with a total amount of
LE 18 018 000 from the Egyptian Exchange. On August 13, 2012 the Company’s Board of Directors
agreed to sell these shares for a total value of L.E 21 710 867 resulting in a profit of L.E 3 692 867.
Shares kept for bonus and incentive plan

This item represents the remainder of the amount paid by the Parent Company in return for issuing one
million ordinary shares with a fair value of L.E 40 per share (before splitting) under account and in favor
of the incentive and bonus plan of the Parent Company’s employees and managers which are kept in
Arab African International Bank.

Description LE

For financing of one million shares from the bonus and incentive plan with a fair value of 100 000 000
L.E 100 per share (before splitting) during 2007.

Deduct:

The value of 200 000 shares exercised by the beneficiaries from the bonus and incentive 20 000 000

plan during December 2007 out of which an amount of L.E 15 million was paid to the
Company for L.E 75 per share (before splitting).

Deduct:

The value of 1.8 million shares exercised by the beneficiaries from the bonus and incentive 72 000 000

plan during 2014 out of which an amount of LE 54 million for L.E 30 per share (before
splitting).

Add
Acquired treasury shares through subsidiaries during 2009 1242
Acquired treasury shares through subsidiaries during 2014 S 591

8 012 833

T3
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33. Amount set aside for incentive and bonus plan
The balance represents the remaining balance from the difference between the grant date fair

value of

shares and the amount incurred by the beneficiary from the incentive and bonus plan for the Parent
Company’s managers and employees for the shares issued during year 2007 in addition to the share of the

shares of the incentive plan in dividends as follows:-

Description

Represents the difference between the fair value of the shares granted to the beneficiaries from the
incentive and bonus plan for one million share (allocated over 5 years) for 60 months and the
agreed upon share price in accordance with the incentive and bonus plan as at December 31, 2012.
Deduct:

The difference between the fair value of the shares at the grant date and the agreed upon share price
in accordance with the incentive and bonus plan for 200 000 shares that were sold in favor of the
beneficiaries during December 2007.

Add:

The value of the employee’s share of the bonus and incentive plan in the declared dividends in
accordance with the resolution of the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting of the Parent Company
held on April 12, 2011, L.E 4 each. *

Accrued interest on the dividends relating to the shares of bonus and incentive plan to employees.

Value of selling of issue rights of the bonus and incentive plan at capital increase that has been sold
according to the bonus and incentive plan committee on October 26, 2014
Deduct:

Difference between the fair value at grant date and the agreed value for bonus and incentive plan for
1.8 million share (after splitting) that have been sold to beneficiaries during September, 2014,

Value of dividends attributed to the sold shares in accordance to the decisions of the general assembly
meeting dated April 12, 2011

-38-
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25000 000

5000 000

20 000 000
5200 000

517447
16 306 912

18 000 000

4020 000

20 004 359

* According to the incentive and bonus plan for employees, managers and executive Board of Directors, the
exercise price of the share vested to the beneficiaries amounts to L.E 75 (before splitting) is reduced by the
value of the distributed dividends to shareholders during plan term.
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34. Long-term loans

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
LE LE
Represents the non-current balance of a medium-term loan amounting to LE = 256 381 985
435 million granted by the Bank of Alexandria to finance Allegria project. The
facility was refinanced via a syndicated loan agreement with the Arab African
International Bank "facility agent" and a group of banks, referred to below.
On July 4, 2013 the company signed a bridge loan contract with Arab African - 55027 500
International Bank for a total value of LE 150 million. . The facility was
refinanced via a syndicated loan agreement with the Arab African International
Bank "facility agent" and a group of banks, referred to below.
On December 19, 2013 the company signed a medium-term syndicated loan 433 983 384 -

contract with a group of banks represented by the Arab African International

Bank "facility agent" with a total amount of LE 900 million to finance SODIC

West project inc udin%the followi% develo;I:_rInents Allegria, Westown

Islg%c}%n%gs, Polygon, Forty West, Westown Hub, and other areas located in
est.

Guarantees:

- First degree real estate mortgage on Al Yosr land plot )

- Share pledge on Al Yosr Company shares in favor of the security agent

- Assignment of receivables generated from sale and lease contracts

- Pledge of g‘oject account, associated sub accounts, and debt service account
in favor of the security agent

- Promissory notes

Interest:

- 3% above the CBE’s lending rate per annum.

- Interest is paid monthlal.

- Administrative fee of 0.05% on the highest outstanding balance per quarter.

Grace Feriod: 12 months from the date of the first drawdown Repayment: 4
years atter the end of the grace period.

On July16, 2014 the company signed a medium-term loan contract with 189 347 800 .
Commercial International Bank (CIB) for a total amount of LE 300 million to

finance specific areas in Westown previously owned by Solidere International.
OnJuly 3,2014 a com}{)any’s subsidiary silggcd a medium term facility 415 823 248 o
agreement with Arab African International Bank (AAIB) for a total amount of

LE 950 million to finance Villette projects’ cost.

Guarantees:

- Assignment of receivables generated from sale and lease contracts

- Pledge of project account, associated sub accounts, and debt service account
in favor of the security agent

- Promissory notes

- Corporate guarantee from SODIC for the total loan value plus associated
interest and fees

-39.
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Interest:

- 2.75% above CBE’s lending rate
- Interest is paid on a quarterly basis .
- Administrative fee of 0.05% on the highest outstanding balance per quarter.

Availability period:

Commences Eom the signing date till December 31, 2017.
Grace period: )

3~ months after the end of availability period,

Repayment: )
or 8 consecutive quarters after the end of the grace period.

Deduct: Current portion _
Bank of Alexandria (short term) - 168 370 259

Arab African International Bank 78 117 009 55027 500

78 117 009 223 397 759

961 037 423 88 011 726

34-1 The Company has concluded a medium term financing contract (sale and lease back - financial lease) with an
amount of L.E 75 132 399 with financing percentage representing 75% out of the value of the assets sold to the
financial lease Company, the lease with a total amount of L.E 95 366 168 is to be settled over 20 quarterly
installment, the contract terms are as follows:

1- PIRAEUS Bank Egypt — Lender (first party)
2- PIRAEUS Company “for financial lease” — the lessor and attorney of the guarantee (second party)
3-Sixth of October for Development and Investment Company “SODIC” (Third party)
- The purpose of the finance: using that finance to settle the capital expenditures the Company committed with
- The period of finance: 5 years
- Interest rate: corridor lending rate announced by the Central Bank plus 2.75%

In addition, the above-mentioned financing operation has proceeded by the sale to PIRAEUS Company “for
financial lease™:

1- The whole land and buildings of the administrative building located on plot No.26 in the area 17 at Westown
Project — Beverly Hills — El-Sheikh Zayed — 6™ of October city — Giza, with a total area of 22 086 m2, sold
for an amount of L.E 32 178 922.

2- The whole land and buildings of the sales building located on plot Building 1 Block 1 the seventeenth avenue
next to the desert road show rooms 38 km Cairo Alex desert road with an area of 4 977 m2, sold for an
amount of L.E 42 953 477.

The Company shall account for the financial lease assets according to the Egyptian Accounting Standard No.
(20) as an operating lease.
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35. Long-term notes payable
This item is represented as follows:

Translation of financial statements

originally issued in Arabic

31/12/2014 31/12/2013
LE LE

Total present value of the checks issued to New Urban 26 510 466 55225281
Communities Authority which are due as of May 2, 2016
Total present value of the checks issued to New Urban 750 000 000 -
Communities Authority which are payable during the
period from Jan 1, 2016 till Jan. 1, 2021.
Total present value of the checks issued to New Urban 1 540 327 440 -
Communities Authority which are payable during the
period from March 9, 2016 till June 9, 2018.
Other notes payable - 131 040
Unamortized interest - notes payable (395 836 904) (6 660 425)

1921 001 002 48 695 896

- The Company’s exposure to credit risk related to long-term notes payable are disclosed in Note No. (46).

36. Real estate and land sales

The Group’s operations are considered to fall into one broad class of business, sale of real estate units and
lands and hence, segmental analysis of assets and liabilities is not considered meaningful. The Group’s

revenues can be analyzed as follows:

Revenues from the sale of units in Allegria

Revenues from the sale of units in Kattameya Plaza
project
Revenues from the sale of units in The Strip

Revenues from the sale of units in Forty West
Revenues from the sale of units in CASA

Revenues from the sale of units in Westown Residences
Revenues from the sales of Polygon

Revenues from the sales of Land

Revenue returns of previously sold land

Revenue returns of previously sold residential and
administrative units

2014 2013
LE LE
449 174 975 840013 522
181 265 083 332213483
102 398 003 45 345 081
184 306 533 47916 011
27 854 148 25259 407
192 788 297 69698 612
183 737 704 97088 710
- 72 538 208
1321 524 743 1530 073 034
= (242 588 032)
(11219 690) (3 000 002)
1310 305 053 1 284 485 000

s
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37. Cost of real estate and land sold

Cost from the sale of units in Allegria

Cost from the sale of units in Kattameya Plaza
Cost from the sale of units in The strip

Cost from the sale of units in Forty West

Cost from the sale of units in CASA

Cost from the sale of units in Westown Residences
Cost from the sales of Polygon

Cost from the sales of Land

Adjustments
Cost reversal of previously sold land

Cost reversal of previously sold residential and
administrative units

38. Other operating revenues

Interest income realized from installments during the
year
Assignment, cancellation dues and delay penalties

Other income

Management fees — joint venture
Dividends share from sister companies
Capital gain

Provisions no longer required and impairment reversal
of trade receivables

42-

Translation

originally issued in Arabic

ncial

tements

2014 2013
LE L.E
239935 542 483 458 490
150 085 993 253 178 817
42931 667 17319179
148 551 089 40 857 668
17 078 000 15 799 000
105 218 235 39 992 257
133 844 028 85 651 944
- 55 944 297
837 644 554 992 201 652
. (12 127 822)
_ (62 143 756)
(7 583 624) (2 003 226)
830 060 930 915 926 848
2014 2013
L.E LE
43 979 165 19 667 977
47 150 929 52972 407
6 431 803 9349 212
- 4311156
5348 651 =
2710 845 1 663 950
16 697 86 173
105 638 090 88 050 875
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements For the financial Year ended December 31, 2014 (Cont.) originally issued in Arabic

40. General and administrative expenses

39. Selling and marketing expenses
2014 i 2014 2013
LE LE LE L.E
Salaries and wages 16 866 554 19 580 224 Salaries, wages and bonuses (40-1) 84 995 682 60 388 147
Sales commissions 39 801 772 49 413 530 Board of Directors’ remunerations and allowances 10 302 379 4 338 600
Advertising expenses 24 708 452 13 333 519 Training, medical care, meals & uniforms 5307 375 3 545 387
Conferences and Exhibitions 4738 674 2705 454 lg‘f;'gﬁ]“ga“"e’ e Mg e, Bkt 16 829 716 16 530 051
Rent 15 738 053 6 220 954 Professional and consultancy fees 16 816 571 16 444 499
Donations 156 740 2012 490 Advertising, exhibitions and conferences 823 176 758 647
Maintenance, cleaning and agriculture 1 951 005 2789 600 Donations and gifts 3 858 155 3 886 201
Travel, transportation and cars 19 778 195 891 ér:li;lsllmstratwe depreciation of fixed assets and rented 11 303 490 16 910 303
Professional and consultants fees 696 000 1 494 447 Reception and hospitality 1 334 263 1193 469
Gifts 207 204 822 728 Printings and office supplies 3 875 569 3359 580
Depreciation 180 147 _ Communication, electricity, telephone and water 5059 570 3 629 180
Employees vacation 149 409 210 422 Subscriptions and governmental dues 1 869 093 707 984
Rent
Others 10 982 817 9 656 841
1596 674 2144314 Travel and transportation 1 408 903 1 875 640
106 810 462 101 523 573 Bank charges 2 957 661 2 000 902
Employees vacation 338 474 543 053
Insurance installments 395 315 467 048
Others 3 503 189 3 365 497
181 961 398 149 601 029
40-1This item includes salaries for the executive Board of Directors as follows:
2014 2013
LE LE

Salaries 4 670 550 13 422 648

Cash settled share-based payments (a) . 665 079

4 670 550 14 087 727

a- On May 16, 2006, the Parent Company’s Board of Directors decided to grant share appreciation rights to
some executive board members that entitle them to future cash payments as part of their salaries and
bonuses packages. The amount of the cash payment is determined based on the increase in the share price
of the Parent Company from grant date until vesting date.
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The Parent Company has bonus and incentive plan for the share settled share based payment as shown in
note No. (51), the current plan has been ended and a new plan will be implemented as its disclosed at note

No. (53).
41. Other operating expenses

Sixth of October for Development and Investment Company “SODIC” “An Egyptian Joint Stock Company” Tr ion of financial stat

Notes to the consolidated financial statements For the financial Year ended December 31, 2014 (Cont.)

originally issued in Arabic

44. Income tax expense
2014 2013
LE LE
Current income tax expense 45 200 962 23 405 347
Deferred income tax (benefit) 773 351 1122623
45 974 313 24 527970

45.

Earnings per share
Earnings per share are calculated on December 31, 2014 based on the Parent Company’ s share in earnings
per share for the year using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year as follows:

2014 2013
LE LE
Net profit / (loss) for the year 142 443 522 (447 138 141y
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 107 678 624 90 676 348
during the year
Profit / (loss) per share (L.E / share) 1.32 4.93)
46. Financial instruments
46.1 Credit risk

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represented in the balances of trade and notes receivables, debtors
and cash and cash equivalent, loans to joint venture and investments in trading securities.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at December 31, 2014 is amounting to L.E 7 012 644 813
(December 31, 2013: L.E 4 105 421 417).

46.2 Liquidity risk

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities:

2014 2013
LE LE
Discount for early payment 48 883 317 37 429 609
Provision of claims 171 305 214 498
Loss from liquidation of investments 4 370 826 295 847
Penalties 521 473 =
Impairment loss of trade receivables debtors 1393 157 293 223 056
and loans to joints ventures
61170 078 331163 010
42. Finance income
2014 2013
LE LE
Interest income 52 691 701 19 157322
Interest income from loans to Joint Venture = 10 112 142
Income from revaluation and sale of investments 2 901 898 2280 258
income
33 393 599 31 549 722
43. Finance cost
2014 2013
LE LE
Interest expense 74 438 334 65 930 031
Finance cost Solidere land - 74 936 488
Installments interest Sheikh Zayed land 5277 395 10 350 775
Net foreign exchange translation 6 026 349 159 087 178
85742 078 310 304 472

45.-

December 31, 2014 Carrying amount Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years
LE LE LE LE

Banks — credit facilities 158 845 076 158 845 076 _ _

Bavks — eyt 1373 763 1373 763 - -
homt-tenn Iy 78 117 009 78 117 009 - -
S Loy 961 037 423 - 225 671 359 735 366 064
Contractors and suppliers 89 252 372 89 252 372 = -

Other creditors 594 964 708 354 286 261 213 023 249 27 655 198
Notes payable ~long term 1 991 001 002 ~ 679 044 377 1 241 956 625
Notes payable — short term 634 347 950 634 347 950 - -

4 438 939 303

1316 222 431

1117 738 985

2 004 977 887
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements For the financial Year ended December 31, 2014 (Cont.)

originally issued in Arabic

December 31, 2013 fair value hedge accounting model. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the consolidated financial

Carrying statements date would not affect the consolidated income statement.

amount Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 46.5 __F_}_!ir.'\«"a_____luﬁ .
L.E L.E L.E LE Fair values versus carrying amounts

Bank 2 e o o _ - The main financial instruments for the Company are represented in the balances of cash at banks,

anks —credit facilities 107 118 313 107118 313 - - investments, trade and notes receivables, its associates, suppliers, contractors, notes payables, creditors
Short — term loans 223 397 759 223 397 759 . ) and othe_r credit balapces and the monetary iter\ns int_:ll_lc.led in debtors and creditors. The main purpose
Contract d ; ) of these instruments is to finance the Company's activities.

e s AL ol 111 660 903 ) According to the applied evaluation basis in evaluating the Company's assets and liabilities the carrying
Long — term notes payable 48 695 896 - 24 767 982 23927914 amounts for these financial instruments shows reasonable evaluation for their fair values.
Other creditors 564 396 146 477 570 307 83 668 036 3157 803 47. Transactions with related parties
Long — term loans 88 011 726 - - 88011 726 Related parties are represented in the Parent Company’ shareholders, Board of Directors, executive
Short-term notes payable 29 307 346 29 307 346 : . directors and companies in which they own directly or indirectly shares giving them significant influence

or control over the Group. The Parent Company made several transactions with related parties during the
1172 588 089 949 054 628 108 436 018 115 097 443

year and these transactions have been made in accordance with the terms determined by the Board of
Directors of the Group and all transactions excluded added value. Summary of significant transactions
concluded during the year and the resulting balances of the related parties at the consolidated balance
sheet date were as follows:-

46.3 Currency risk
Exposure to currency risk
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk with main currencies was as follows:

December 31, 2014 a) Transactions with related parties

Description USD Euro 31/12/2014
Cash at banks
Sl 38 DAl 1944 671 273 963 Party / Relationship Nature of transaction ~ Amount of transaction
Surplus of foreign currencies 1 944 671 273 963 LE
Executive managers and Board of Directors (Parent Executive and Board of (See note No. 40).
December 31, 2013 Company) Directors
Description USD Palmyra — SODIC for Real Estate Development Loan for joint projects _
Cash at banks 2934 697 -
. : Management fees
Surplus of foreign currencies 2934 697
46.4 Interest rate risk : b) Balances resulting from transactions with related parties
At the date of consolidated financial statements, the interest rate profile of the Group’s financial Item as shown in the 31/12/2014 31/12/2013
instruments was as follows:- Party consolidated balance sheet LE LE
Carrying amount Bonyan Development and Trade Co. Creditors and other credit balances 107 529 955
31/12/2014 31/12/2013 Palmyra — SODIC for Real Estate Loans to Joint Ventures 189 625843 188 700 868
Fixed rate instruments L.E LE Development
F%nanc?al assets 4 858 949 871 3 603 525 878 Accrued interest on loan under 65 482 130 65 482 130
Financial liabilities (2 555 348 952) (78 003 242) debtors caption
2 303 600 919 3 525 522 636 Accrued management fees under 4 342 500 4 342 500
Variable rate instruments debtor caption
Financial liabilities 1199 373 271 418 52
( ) (418 527 798) ° Impairment in dues from Palmyra — SODIC for Real Estate Development has been recorded as its
The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or described in note No.(8)

loss and the Company does not designate derivatives (interest rate swaps) as hedging instruments under a
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Legal status

There is a dispute between the Parent Company and a party regarding the contract concluded between
them on February 23, 1999 which is related to delivering this party a plot of land as a usufruct right for
indefinite period of time in return for an annual rental with a minimal amount for a total of 96 Fadden
approximately and which has not been delivered up till this date as the management of this party did not
abide by the detailed conditions of the contract. There are exchanged notifications concerning this land
between the management of the Parent Company and the management of the third party. During 2009,
this party raised a court case No. 3 of 2009 Civil 6" of October against the Parent Company for the
delivery of the allocated land. A preliminary sentence was issued by the court in its session held on
February 22, 2010 to refer this matter to Experts and to delegate the Experts Office of the Ministry of
Justice to embark this case and set a session to be held on April 26, 2010 for the expert to present his
report .The session was postponed several times and the last one will be held on November 24, 2014
The Company’s legal counselor is of the opinion that the Company has the right to maintain and exploit
this land under the contract as the said contract has not been effective and no usufruct right has been
arisen to this party since its effect was based on conditions that have not been met. In addition, in case of
any dispute raised by this party to possess the land, the Company has the actual and physical possession
of the land and hence it has the right to continue in possessing the land until settlement of this dispute in
front of the court.

On November 24, 2014 6 of October partial court decided to dissuade its decline decree of previous
proof procedures dated February 22, 2010.

Tax status

On June 2, 2014, Law No. (22) for the year 2014 has been issued to impose a temporary three year
additional tax amounting to (5%) starting from the current taxable period. This additional tax is imposed
on the tax pool over an amount of One Million Egyptian pounds by individuals or corporates as stipulated
in the articles of the Income tax Law. This additional tax should be assessed and collected according to
those articles. This law came into force starting from June 5, 2014.

On June 30, 2014, Law No. (53) For the year 2014 has been issued by a presidential decree. This law
included amendments for some articles of Law No. (91) For the year 2005. The most important
amendments are as follows:

1. Imposing a tax on Dividends.

2. Imposing a tax on the capital gains resulted from sale of capital contribution shares and securities.

As the executive regulations related to the previously mentioned law has not been issued yet, that may
result in inconsistency in interpreting the articles of the new law, the Parent Company’s management has
assessed and quantified the impact of application of the tax law according to its interpretation, never the
less, this assessment and quantification may differ upon issuance of the executive regulations of this law.
Summary of the Parent Company’s tax status at the consolidated financial statements date is as follows:
Corporate tax

A ten years corporate tax exemption period starting from the year following the date of the activity
inception as of 1/1/1998 until 31/12/2007 has been previously granted to the Parent Company according
to Law No. 59 of 1979 concerning the New Urban Communities.

During the month of January 2011, the Company submitted a request to the Tax Authority demanding the
amendment of the tax exemption period to start from the date of the actual handing over of the units in the
year 2002.
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On January 18, 2011, the Disputes Dispersal Committee of the Tax Authority considered and studied the
Company’s request in the light of the date of the actual handing over of the units and the regulations
applicable to similar companies. Accordingly, the said committee decided to approve the Parent
Company’s request thus considering the date of the actual business activity of the Company to be the year
2002, hence, the Parent Company shall be entitled to tax exemption from 1/1/2003 to 31/12/2012, and the
amendment was annotated in the Company’s tax card. The amended tax return for year 2008 was
submitted to the Tax Authority.

Years from 1996 till 2001 has been inspected and the company were notified and tax differences are under
settlement.

The inspection has been carried out for years from 2002 till 2004 and it has been linked by estimation by
Tax Authority, the company was not notified by any claims and has been appealed on the forms
and these years have been delivered to the internal committee which decided to send back the file to
the head office to repeat inspection for these years.

The inspection of the period from 2006 till 2008 has been notified, and a notification by the form (19) as .
at April 29, 2012 for the year 2006 by estimation and has been appealed as at May 3, 2012 and re inspection
for the year 2006 has been requested and re inspection is carried on.

The Company submits its annual tax return on due dates in accordance with Law No. 91 of 2005.

Salary tax
Tax inspection was carried out for previous years until year 2001, the tax claims was paid according to the

assessment of the Internal Committee, and the resulting tax was paid according to the assessment of the
Internal Committee during September 2004.
Years from 2002 to 2004 were inspected and the Company paid the tax differences.
Years from 2005 till 2010 are under inspection and the Company has not received any tax claims till
authorizing these financial statements for issuance.
Withholding tax
Tax inspection was carried out for the previous years until the third quarter of 2014 and the Company did
not receive any tax claims until authorizing these financial statements for issuance.
Stamp tax
Tax inspection was carried out for the previous years till 31/12/2010 and. The tax inspection was made
and the resulting differences were paid.

Years from 2011 till 2012 are under tax inspection and no claims has been issued till now.
The company regularly provides stamp tax returns.
Sales tax
The Company was inspected from inception till August 2003 and tax differences were paid.
The Company was inspected from August, 2003 till December, 2013 and tax differences and additional
tax were paid.

Real estate property tax
The Company submitted its real estate property tax returns of year 2009 on due dates in accordance with
Law No. 196 of 2008.

Capital commitments
Capital commitments as at December 31, 2014 amounted LE 13 725 010 is represented in contracted

and unexecuted works (2013: L.E 24 676 241).
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Incentive and bonus plan of the Parent Company’s employees and managers
On October 16, 2006, the Parent Company’s Extra - Ordinary General Assembly unanimously agreed to
approve the incentive and bonus plan of the Parent Company, and authorizing the Parent Company’s
Board of Directors to issue million share with a fair value of L.E 100 per share before splitting and
appointing an independent committee for supervising the execution of this plan formed by non —
executive members in the Board of Directors.
The following are the main features of the incentive and bonus plan of the Parent Company’s
employees, managers and executive board directors:
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e On April 26, 2010, the Company was notified by the consent of the Egyptian Financial Supervisory
Authority on the approval of the amendments made on the bonus and incentive plan till the date of
the extraordinary general assembly as its disclosed at note No. (53).

Beneficiaries, extent and vesting conditions of granting of shares in accordance with this plan are as follows:
No. of Fair value of Exercising
shares  share at grant price

The incentive and bonus plan works through allocation of shares for the Parent Company’s employees,
managers and executive board directors and to sell these shares in favor of them in preferential
conditions.
Duration of the plan is four years starting from the date of approval of the plan by the Parent Company’s
Shareholders meeting and each beneficiary is allocated during this year a specified number of shares
each year over the plan years according to the allocated shares outlined in the appendix of this plan.
The price of share was determined for the beneficiary at L.E 75 per share (before splitting).
The Parent Company shall finance the issuance of the shares of the increase allocated in application of
the plan and the value of shares due to the Parent Company will be paid from the proceeds of sale.
The Company signed a custody agreement with Arab African International Bank on April 15, 2007, to
save bonus and incentive shares. The shares of the plan were issued and financed by the Parent
Company. Annotation of this increase in the Commercial Registry was on July 5, 2007.
On September 23, 2007, the Supervisory Committee of the incentive and bonus plan of the Parent
Company’s employees, executive directors and managers agreed to the selection of the beneficiaries and
also the number of shares allocated to each one of them. Accordingly, the whole shares of the plan were
allocated in full.
During December 2007, a number of 200 000 shares from the incentive and bonus plan were exercised
with average selling price of L.E 226.63 per share. The amounts due to beneficiaries were set aside in
special account held by Arab African International Bank until the completion of the prohibition period
according to the incentive and bonus plan.
The number of shares allocated to the plan was increased by 500 000 additional shares.
On July 3, 2008 the Supervisory Committee of the incentive and bonus plan of the Parent Company’s
employees, executive directors approved the allocation of 495 000 shares of the total shares to some of
the Parent Company’s employees and executive directors. Allocation contracts for these shares were
signed with the employees and the executive directors during October 2008.
On December 7, 2009, the Parent Company’s Extraordinary General Assembly agreed on the
amendment of some articles of the bonus and incentives plan and the allocation contracts of the shares
that were approved by the Egyptian Financial Supervisory Authority as follows:

 Extension of the year of the exercise right stated in the bonus and incentive plan and the allocation

contract to be ended on March 2015 instead of March 2011.

e Amendment of the bonus and incentive plan and the allocation contract to enable the beneficiary
from the plan to transfer the title of the shares allocated to him to be in his name after ending the
prohibition period provided the payment of the share price stated in the plan and in this case, the
beneficiary is entitled to all rights as determined on the Company’ shares.

* Amendment of article No. (11) of the bonus and incentive plan to give the Board of Directors the
right — when necessary — to replace a Supervisory Committee member with another one provided
that this member to be from non-executive members.

Bl

Party in date (before (before
Entitled Grant date thousand splitting) splitting) Conditions
LE LE

(Former) 28/3/2007 750 100 75 5 years working in the Company

Managing director and exercise period from June
30,2007 March 2015 - the
beneficiary is not entitled to this
right if the performance of the
Company’s share is below CASE
30 by more than 20% for 2
consecutive years during the
vesting period.

(Former) Board of  23/9/2007 715 100 75 According to  performance

director measure and exercise period from
June 30, 2007 till March 2015.
According to  performance

Some managers 23/9/2007 175 100 75 measure and exercise period from
June 30,2007till March 2015.

Board of director ~ 7/10/2008 25 73.34 75 According  to  performance
measure and exercise period from
June 30,2007till March 2015.

Some managers 7/10/2008 470 73.34 75 According to  performance
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Comparative figures has been modified to be conformed with current financial statement classification

53.

Balance Sheet

LE
(165 849 864) Creditors and other credit balances
165 849 864 Long- term Creditors
Income Statement
LE
3311386 Other operating revenue
(3 311 386) Finance income

Subsequent Events

On February 1, 2015 the extra ordinary general assembly agreed on the following:

Issuing solidarity guarantee in favor to Arab African international bank to grant and guarantee all “Soreal
for real estate investment” liabilities regarding loan between “Soreal for real estate investment” and Arab
African international bank dated July 3, 2014 that “Soreal for real estate investment” obtained which is
amounting to LE 950 million from the bank

End of current bonus and incentive plan for employees and executive managers by the end of March 31,
2015 “expired” and changing the remaining shares amounting to 737 500 shares that has not been

exercised to treasury shares according to its related regulations.

Implementation of new bonus and incentive plan through allocation of shares with special conditions to
employees and Board of Director’s members
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